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The Enterprise University
Introduction
The University of Plymouth, the enterprise university,
is an ambitious, world-class institution and one of the
largest universities in the UK with over 30,000 students
and 3,000 staff. Our commitment to embedding
enterprise at the University of Plymouth builds upon
our heritage and reputation for scholarly endeavour.
We have laid the foundations for an inclusive and
proactive enterprise culture; one that nurtures and
supports the wealth of talent within the University,
and works for the benefit of our students, alumni and
stakeholders in the city and beyond. As we move
forward, our focus will be on delivering excellence in
all that we do.
As an ambitious, world-class institution we look to add value in our work and bring out the best in everyone
with whom we engage. That way, we can empower both people and organisations so that they can realise their
full potential, transforming lives through knowledge. As the enterprise University we will embed innovation and
creativity at the heart of all our activities and play a key role in leading the development of an economically,
culturally and socially vibrant enterprise community.
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Public benefit statement
The University of Plymouth is an exempt charity under the terms of the Charities Act 2006. From 1 June 2010
the University will be monitored as a charity by HEFCE as the principal regulator. The Governors of the
University are charity trustees of the University.
There are two key principles and seven supporting principles of public benefit to be followed by all charities, as
follows:
1. Key principle: There must be an identifiable benefit or benefits
1.1 Supporting principle: It must be clear what the benefits are
1.2 Supporting principle: The benefits must be related to the aims
1.3 Supporting principle: Benefits must be balanced against any detriment or harm
2. Key principle: Benefit must be to the public, or section of the public
2.1 Supporting principle: The beneficiaries must be appropriate to the aims
2.2 Supporting principle: Where benefit is to a section of the public, the opportunity to benefit must not be
unreasonably restricted by geographical or other restrictions, or by ability to pay any fees charged
2.3 Supporting principle: People in poverty must not be excluded from the opportunity to benefit
2.4 Supporting principle: Any private benefits must be incidental.
The University has had due regard to the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit. The detail included
within the Operating and Financial Review demonstrates the ways in which the University has delivered its
charitable purposes for the public benefit and the paragraphs below summarise these achievements.
Students and widening participation
The University supports the principles of public benefit through the educational and related facilities provided
to students and indeed the wider community.
The University has a balanced and diverse student population from a variety of backgrounds and experience
and enjoys the educational and cultural benefits that this brings. Potential students are able to apply to the
University regardless of geographical location, background and financial standing and a wide range of courses
and programmes are offered to include two year degrees and part-time study.
We ensure that students in genuine financial need have access to advice and appropriate financial assistance.
Information is provided for students on the University website and student portal as well as face to face contact
with Student Funding Administrators. The University disbursed £8.1m of bursaries and scholarships to students
in 2009/10.
The student experience is of central importance to the University and as well as providing excellent teaching
and learning facilities the University recognises the value of work based, work related and placement learning
for students. Each year over 12,000 students take part in accredited or unaccredited work-based placements
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and 840 students regularly take part in volunteering activities through the Students’ Union. These experiences
enable students to develop as individuals as well as enhancing future employability. The University has plans to
accredit all placement learning, encouraging more students both to participate in work-based activity and to
appreciate and record their learning.
The University provides a range of student services to ensure student welfare, to include health services,
counselling, specialist provision for disabled students, sport and exercise facilities, careers and financial advice.
There is a strong alumni presence and groups are now active in 15 countries. Events take place during the year,
which provide networking and careers support to current students and fellow alumni.
Social responsibility
The University provides facilities for use by the wider community and businesses. This includes the Formation
Zone based in the University of Plymouth's Roland Levinsky Building, which provides incubator and preincubator space for the creative industries and Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM)
businesses. These facilities complement the University’s involvement with Tamar Science Park and the Pool
Innovation Centre in Cornwall and form an integral part of the work that is taking place in the South West to
support graduates in setting up their own businesses and enhance economic regeneration in the region.
The University works with partners in Plymouth to create a knowledge city with higher skills development and
knowledge transfer at the heart of decision making. The University has relationships with local schools and
colleges. It is the lead sponsor of the recently-opened Marine Academy Plymouth, an academy school
established with the intention to improve attainment and raise aspirations among children and young people in
a deprived community. The University offers internship and work placements for school students and has
employed several apprentices as part of the National Apprenticeship Scheme.
Peninsula Arts, also located in the Roland Levinsky Building offers numerous facilities for community use
including exhibitions, film, public lectures, music, performance and sports facilities. This has attracted more
than 32,000 people onto campus. There are numerous cafes on campus that are open to students, staff and
public alike.
Sustainability
In 2010, the University of Plymouth was named in the People and Planet Green League as the UK's top
university in environmental performance under. High environmental standards are part of the University's core
business and are embedded into its estates management programme with an innovative carbon management
plan, Fair Trade status and the award of an international standard for environmental management and
performance –ISO 14001.
This expertise is complemented in all aspects of the University's teaching, learning, research, business and
community activities. Plymouth enjoys leading research in this area with the Centre for Sustainable Transport
and is currently developing a new Sustainability Institute to build on the success of the University's Centre for
Sustainable Futures. The University has recently established a new Office of Procurement and Sustainability,
whose Director is a member of the Chief Executive’s Group, to lead operational developments in this area.
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Context
National environment
According to the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) data, in 2009 the UK spent
0.7% of GDP on Higher Education. In the UK there are 165 publicly funded Higher Education Institutions (HEIs),
of which 115 are universities.
In England, the sector is currently regulated by the Higher Education Funding Council for England (HEFCE) with
the Training and Development Agency for Schools (TDA) maintaining an oversight of areas of activity which they
fund directly.
All UK universities undertake teaching and learning and research, together with a range of other income
generating activities, although the mission focus and balance varies. Some institutions concentrate primarily on
teaching while others are more research intensive. Universities are increasingly becoming aware of their
responsibilities both regionally and nationally, working with their regions to develop the economic, social and
cultural landscape.
In 2008/9, Higher Education Institutions (HEIs) generated some £25.4 billion in income of which £4.1 billion
comprises Research Grants and Contracts. HEIs received £938 million from contracted research on behalf of
external partners and earned £56.5 million in income from Intellectual Property in the form of licensing fees
and royalties.
In 2008/9, there were 1.85million undergraduate students and 530,000 postgraduate students and the sector
directly employed 117,000 full time and 61,000 part time academic staff.
Within the sector, the University of Plymouth is the fifth largest university in the UK. It is a member of the
University Alliance group, formally launched in 2007. Its member institutions have a balanced portfolio of
research and teaching with enterprise and innovation integral to their missions.

Strategic Plan
The University of Plymouth launched its Strategic Plan October 2009. This document was developed in
consultation with governors, staff and students. Alongside this vision is a list of key projects that are being
implemented over the next two years. The University Plan is supported by a family of strategies which
demonstrate both direction and priorities in key areas of the University’s activity.

Key Performance Indicators
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are a way of measuring performance and mapping the distance travelled
towards achieving the institutional vision and mission. These indicators build upon our existing strengths and
ambitions to create a first class and first choice University.
Key measures of success include:
 maintaining Home student numbers
 increasing Overseas enrolments
 enhancing the employability of our graduates
 increasing our research income
 increasing the levels of satisfaction from our students and employees
 reaching sustainability targets
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Overview
Vision, Mission and Values and Ambitions
Vision – To be the Enterprise University
Our vision sets out the type of University we aspire to be. We are already an ambitious, world-class University.
By placing enterprise at the heart of everything we do, we are developing an innovative and creative culture
that empowers staff and students.

Mission
Our enterprising approach will further develop our reputation as a world-leading University and our enterprise
culture will deliver sustained innovation and international impact. We will use the knowledge we create to
transform lives. We will achieve this through world-class research, excellence in teaching and learning, and
through our partnerships and collaborations. We will maintain our commitment to driving social inclusion,
economic prosperity, and environmental quality in our local community and beyond.

Values
Our core values define our University culture. They guide how we make our decisions, and how our staff,
students and stakeholders work with each other.
• Transforming lives through knowledge, collaboration and partnership.
• Providing access to research-informed teaching and learning to all who can benefit.
• Undertaking world-class research of high-impact to society and the economy.
• Championing innovation, entrepreneurship and creativity.
• Using our scholarship to influence regional, national and international developments.
• Taking pride in our people and their achievements.
• Nurturing and rewarding skills and talent.
• Being transparent, open and inclusive.
• Encouraging sustainability through shared practice.
• Embracing diversity, promoting opportunity and social cohesion.
• Pursuing excellence in all that we do.
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Ambitions
We have developed five University ambitions that will focus our activities over the next three years and help us
make our vision a reality. Our staff, students and partners working together will guarantee our success, and
maximise the further opportunities that our ambitions present.

Ambition 1: Through-life learning
To further enhance our first-class student experience and develop people who are ambitious, entrepreneurial
and autonomous learners. Through work experience and volunteering they will be well-equipped to build their
futures and to continue learning throughout their lives.

Ambition 2: World-class research
To recognise, reward and celebrate world-class research and to further develop its impact through
multidisciplinary and interdisciplinary working. We will support innovation and entrepreneurship, maximising
the exchange and dissemination of knowledge with business, the community and policymakers.

Ambition 3: Plymouth and beyond
To be a dynamic leader within the region and beyond. We will champion opportunities through partnerships
both national and international, and contribute to the development of a future-facing, knowledge-based
economy, and a vibrant, skilled community.

Ambition 4: Sustainability
To move towards sustainability in all our activities. We will ensure that our graduates are aware of economic,
environmental, social and ethical issues, and promote the importance of social enterprise, community
engagement and volunteering.

Ambition 5: Raising aspirations
To work with key partners to raise people’s aspirations, encouraging participation, providing opportunities for
progression, and embracing social inclusion.
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Overview
Economic impact of the University
An economic impact study commissioned by the University in June 2010 revealed that the institution contributes nearly
a quarter of a billion pounds to the regional economy.

This figure is calculated across a range of factors including: procurement of goods and services; off-campus
expenditure by staff and students; visitor spend; number of students in the regional workforce; and business
and community interactions. The University’s graduation week, which attracts 16,000 visitors to the City,
contributes £530,000 to the City economy in just 10 days.
Students are a major component of the economic impact, and excluding money spent on campus, they
contribute £99.4million annually to the Plymouth economy. The study suggested that the 2008/09 first year
student intake will increase their lifetime earning potential by £1.85 billion.
The report, by ERS Consultancy, shows that the institution supports over 4,100 jobs in the region and
contributes £241million in gross annual expenditure.

Challenges and risks
The University monitors risks and opportunities on a regular basis through the Chief Executive’s Group, and is
confident that risks are managed or mitigated to ensure that the University’s ambitions can be delivered.
The change of government in May 2010 heralded a huge step-change in the way Higher Education (HE) is
funded and delivered in the UK. The government reported the budget (2011–2014) available for Higher
Education through the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) on 20 October 2010. As a result of this there will
be a minimum 40% reduction in state funding for higher education budget, distributed over four years. The
reduction in funding focuses on the core teaching grant given to universities (£3bn) and a 15% reduction in the
research budget (£1bn).
The independent review of Higher Education Funding and Student Finance, chaired by Lord Browne, also
reported in October 2010. The report considered how universities are funded and whether an increase in the
student contribution (fees) was appropriate, and has recommended an uncapped increase in the student
contribution. Current fees are capped at £3,290 and the Browne Review signals the potential creation of a ‘freemarket’ approach to HE. The coalition government is considering the introduction of a ‘soft’ cap of £6000 per
year and an upper limit of £9000, with institutions charging more than £6000 subject to fair access conditions.
There are considerable challenges and risks associated with both these changes. In particular, the increase in
student contribution may not truly offset the severe reduction in government core grant. It is imperative that
the University reviews its approach and delivery to ensure a sustainable future.
As a University, we acknowledge that we cannot continue to do the same things in the same way and simply
work faster. We have to fundamentally change our business model and our approach to delivering both a high
quality learning experience and research excellence in key areas that are world class and of critical value. This
new approach needs to be bold, entrepreneurial and based on the important role we play in our community,
reinforcing the way we are working in partnership to drive growth in the economy through world-class
teaching, research and innovation.
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This is an opportunity for us to embrace opportunities and shape our future. Solutions to address funding
changes will need to be values-driven, considered, future-facing and sustainable. We need to further embrace
new technology to enable and support this transformation. A more entrepreneurial mindset and attention to
costing and pricing, income generation and delivering value will be essential as we deliver graduates who are
well prepared for the new opportunities which will arise and who are effective citizens.
A focus on more flexible patterns of delivery, working with partners, supporting knowledge translation and
social enterprise will require us to be more responsive.
As an institution, we will review our business model and make changes to ensure that it continues to be fit for
purpose. Addressing issues such as pensions and working on shared services will help us become more agile
and effective.

Opportunities
The University of Plymouth is well placed to succeed in an ever changing environment. We are looking at ways
to enhance our offer, create a more sustainable business model and continue to have a positive impact on our
communities in the region and beyond. As the enterprise University we will:


build a confident enterprise culture secured through collaboration and partnership where diversity,
creativity and innovation are enabled, realised, valued and rewarded. Our enterprise culture is one of
entrepreneurship and creativity, where new ideas are tested and bravery and risk-taking encouraged.



ensure our systems and structures enable our vision and accelerate our enterprise-led approach. All
University strategies, policies, systems and facilities will seek to empower our people to deliver
excellence in both the professional and academic environments, so we will continue to develop
enterprise-enabling structures that promote positive change. We will further develop our use of
technology and e-business, enhancing both our teaching and learning offer and our business capability,
leading the sector in the use of new technologies and approaches to business critical issues.

Particular opportunities include:


strengthening our strategic partnerships regionally and internationally



building on our reputation and excellence in teaching and learning to develop new approaches to
learning and continuing to a diverse range of attract motivated and high-quality students. Our definition
of ‘The Plymouth student’ is designed to identify what it means to study with and graduate from the
University of Plymouth



using technology to enhance our student offer, working with both academic and professional staff to
ensure we are leading developments in this area



driving the internationalisation agenda that includes increasing our percentage of overseas students
studying at the campus, developing overseas in-country delivery and increasing income secured through
global research networks, as well as a focus on a curriculum designed to fit students for an increasingly
global market place



further developing world-class research and translation of research findings into income generation
through links with innovation, business and knowledge agencies.
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Strategic Partnerships
The shape of HE in the Plymouth city region – a univerCity
We are working with our partners in
Plymouth to create a knowledge city with
higher skills development, and knowledge
translation and innovation at the heart of
decision making. The University is wellrepresented in city leadership positions
such as the Local Strategic Partnership and
is collaborating with partners on projects
such as the Plymouth Science and
Innovation Programme, the National
Marine Aquarium Learning Resources
Centre and the Life Centre.

University of Plymouth Colleges (UPC)
University of Plymouth Colleges (UPC) is a muchapplauded partnership between local colleges of
Further Education across the South West and the
University of Plymouth. The college network had
modest beginnings in 1989 when the University
collaborated with its partners to provide offcampus provision for just over 450 students. Just
five years later, the partnership was recognised as
an excellent model of collaborative working by
bringing high-quality, degree level education to
local communities. Last year we celebrated 20
years of the partnership. Over the last six years
alone, over 45,000 students have graduated from
the partnership.

Plymouth Devon International College
In Spring 2009, the University entered into an agreement with Navitas Limited for the establishment of an
affiliate college, Plymouth Devon International College (PDIC), which is based on the University campus
and provides pathways into University programmes for international students. PDIC operates foundation–
level certificates, Level 4 diploma pathways and pre-masters qualification programmes, developed with
advice from University staff. The first cohort of students who successfully completed PDIC qualifications
have progressed onto their destination degree studies at the University.
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Peninsula College of Medicine and Dentistry
The Peninsula Medical School
was established as a partnership
between the Universities of
Exeter and Plymouth and the
NHS in Devon and Cornwall on 1
August 2000. Formed following
a successful bid to the
Government, it was part of a
national expansion of medical
student numbers in the UK.
Peninsula Medical School is one
of five entirely new medical
schools and was one of the first
to be developed in the UK for
more than 30 years.

The requirement to increase training capacity for dentists led to a successful bid to the Government that on
26 January 2006 established Peninsula Dental School as a partnership between the Universities of Exeter and
Plymouth and the NHS in Devon and Cornwall. The first cohort of 64 students joined the Dental School in
September 2007. Given the progress and success of the College, the Universities undertook a review of the
Memorandum of Agreement in 2001/10 to ensure that remains fit for purpose for the next phase of
development.
The previous collaborative
agreement with Britannia Royal
Naval College (BRNC) was
superseded in 2008, when the
University won the contract to
take on all academic delivery at
the College. The collaboration
now takes the form of
contracted-out provision in
relation to the use of BRNC
premises and facilities, with the
programmes validated by the
University and delivered by
University
staff.
The
programmes were re-validated
in 2009.
Under the new
arrangements, the University is
now extending its offer to
include
overseas
naval
personnel
and
potential
delivery overseas.

Britannia Royal Naval College
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Marine Academy Plymouth
The University is the lead sponsor of the Marine
Academy Plymouth - the UK’s first Marine Academy. The
school is a state-funded specialist secondary school in a
deprived area of the city. The other two sponsors are
Cornwall College and Plymouth City Council. The Marine
theme is not just about Marine Science. Marine
Academy Plymouth’s focus is to help to prepare and
develop its students’ career opportunities – for today’s
traditional jobs and for those that we do not yet know
about; achieved through a commitment to high
standards and to sustainability.

The University in Cornwall
Cornwall is strategically important to us, not only does it fit with our key priority to unlock and nurture regional
talent but we already have an established historical presence in Cornwall through the Faculty of Health, UPC,
PCMD and the Combined Universities in Cornwall (CUC). We are looking to promote our enterprise-led
approach in the region, develop Biomedical, Marine and Computer Science knowledge hubs and create more
University presence in Cornwall.

Combined Universities in Cornwall (CUC)
Combined Universities in Cornwall (CUC) is a partnership of
two universities and a number of colleges working together
to give more people the chance to study in Cornwall, and to
use higher education to help our businesses and
communities to thrive. The partners are: the University of
Exeter, the University of Plymouth, University College
Falmouth, Peninsula College of Medicine and Dentistry,
Cornwall College and Truro and Penwith College. Each of
these partners brings something different to CUC, which
means more choice for the people and businesses of
Cornwall.

Knowledge Spa, Truro
The Knowledge Spa is the base for our Health
Profession courses in Truro. This state of the
art facility located on the site of the Royal
Cornwall Hospital was developed in
partnership with PCMD and the NHS with a
multi-million pound extension to incorporate
the new Peninsula Dental School.
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Pool Innovation Centre
The Pool Innovation Centre is a state-of-the-art three storey building with a net rentable floor space,
providing high quality, flexible, managed workspace and business support for start-up and existing
businesses across all sectors, which have high productivity, ambition and the potential for growth. The
management of the Centre is being delivered by the University on behalf of Cornwall Council. The building
has been supported through £9 million of ERDF Convergence investment, and £3 million from the South
West Regional Development Agency. The Centre consists of 49 offices of five different sizes and includes a
shared workspace area to support the incubation of early stage businesses, six shared meeting rooms and a
modern conference facility supporting high quality video conferencing. Pool Innovation Centre uses 60% less
energy than a conventional office building thanks to its innovative eco-friendly design, which includes a
biomass boiler, natural ventilation, water ‘harvesting’ system, full grass roof and solar panels. Many of the
materials were sourced locally including sustainably forested Cornish cedar cladding and Delabole slate. The
Centre has also achieved a BREEAM Excellence standard, one of the highest levels of environmental
accreditation available for new buildings, ensuring that the Centre’s environmental impact was low during
construction and will also be during its lifespan.

Peninsula Research Institute for Marine Renewable Energy (PRIMaRE)
The Peninsula Research Institute for Marine Renewable Energy (PRIMaRE) is a £12.6 million project set up
two years ago with South West Regional Development Agency (SWRDA) funding to the Universities of
Plymouth and Exeter. PRIMaRE brings together a unique team of world-class researchers to provide
unparalleled expertise and research capacity to address the wider considerations of all aspects of Marine
Renewable Energy. PRIMaRE boasts 15 academic staff and 60 researchers dedicated to the support and
development of the marine renewable energy sector. PRIMaRE supports and complements the South West
RDA's pioneering £42 million Wave Hub project, which has created the world's largest wave energy test site
10 miles off the Cornish coast, and recently brought into commission.
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Section 1 - Our people
Plymouth People
At Plymouth, people are the reason we succeed.
We encourage all our people - academics, professional staff, students and alumni - to be innovative and
entrepreneurial in their approach to work, research and indeed life in general. So we look to foster a spirit of
creativity and enterprise in all those who can contribute to achieving our mission.
Plymouth people are proactive in their approach, enabled and rewarded when achieving outstanding results in
line with our core values. We recognise and value the diversity of our people and consider that the Plymouth
experience for both students and staff is enriched as a result this.
At Plymouth we adopt a friendly and collegiate approach to partnership working, where boundaries are diffuse
and highly interactive, so that authentic knowledge sharing is enabled and competitive advantage secured.

The average weekly number of persons (including senior post-holders) employed by the University during the
year, expressed as full-time equivalents (FTEs), was 2,412 (2008/09: 2,496). Staff were split by area as follows.

Teaching
Academic Support
Administration and Central Services
Premises
Other Income-generating
Catering and Residences
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2009/10
1,430
272
388
181
88
53
2,412

2008/09
1,477
282
403
197
79
58
2,496

The Plymouth Experience
The student experience at Plymouth draws inspiration from the spirit of discovery that marks our region’s
maritime and industrial heritage, and from our strong network of partnerships …

Plymouth people make a major contribution to economies and societies around the world. We are committed
to developing graduates who are ready to take their place as active and responsible citizens in society, in
particular using their sustainability and cross-cultural skills in the local and global environment.
Plymouth students:
• are ambitious and autonomous learners who possess sound academic knowledge
• are critical, rational and innovative thinkers, who are confident, adaptable and capable of independent
enquiry
• have a wide range of intellectual and key skills, and a reflective approach to learning
• are readily employable, and well-equipped, through direct work experience or volunteering, for lifelong
learning and the professional world

Employability
Student employability is extremely important to us; over the next three years we will consolidate existing workrelated, work-based and placement learning and extend its provision to better support students, employers and
those in employment.
We recognise the value of work-based, work-related and placement learning for students and those in
employment. As we develop as the enterprise University, work-based learning will become increasingly
prominent, fulfilling professional imperatives and addressing business needs, as well as offering opportunities
to enhance students’ future employability.
• We will continue to embed professional, employability and career management skills into University
programmes and curricula, contributing to the development of graduate skills and attributes.
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• We will ensure each student has the opportunity to participate in accredited or supported work-based
learning and/or volunteering.
• We will encourage students to develop skills through learning outside the formal curriculum.
The key performance indicator (KPI) below demonstrates that the University has exceeded its aspirational
targets with regard to student employability, for all types of employment, which is a significant achievement
given the impact of the recession in the year in question and the proportion of students who wish or need to
remain in the South West region with its more limited graduate employment opportunities. The professional
nature of the University’s programmes and the way in which placements, internships and work-based learning
are integrated with academic study advantages our graduates in the market place.

Key performance indicator - Student employability

2009/10

2008/09

90%
93%

90%
90%

Expected
Actual

Student numbers
Student numbers have increased by 2.8% and FTEs by 6.4%. The following figures have been provided by the
Corporate Information Department as background information:
2009/10
Within the University (including Peninsula
College of Medicine and Dentistry)
Further education college partnerships
Total

2008/09

Heads

FTE

Heads

FTE

22,926
10,313
33,239

18,559
7,413
25,972

22,137
10,204
32,341

17,212
7,200
24,412

The key performance indicator (KPI) below demonstrates the number of overseas enrolments, as a full time
equivalent (FTE). The development of the University’s internationalisation strategy and increased investment in
18

the International Office over the past two years has started to take effect and this has seen the University
exceed its aspirational target. Various initiatives are currently underway to ensure further growth in overseas
enrolments.
Key performance indicator – number of overseas enrolments

2009/10

2008/09

840
1070

820
844

Expected
Actual

The key performance indicator (KPI) below demonstrates the percentage of full-time first degree entrants
expected to complete their course. The improvement in the University’s completion rates reflects the impact of
student centred initiatives introduced over the last two years which are beginning to show positive effects.
Key performance indicator – Student completion

2009/10

2008/09

81%
82%

81%
79%

Expected
Actual

Analysis of Student Numbers
35,000
30,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000
5,000
0

2009/10
2008/09

Development and Alumni Relations
2009/10 saw the appointment of an additional four staff in the Development and Alumni Relations Office
(DARO). These posts are focused on income generation in focus and complete a team with coverage of the
main areas of development activity. In the major gift programme the University expects to see the impact of
activity up to twelve months following the appointment.
DARO issue a monthly e-newsletter with information on fellow alumni, University news and events notices
which reaches 12,630 alumni. An annual magazine is received by 56,528 alumni, donors and key stakeholders.
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Alumni have responded positively to the new programme and their engagement has increased significantly
over the last year. Alumni groups are now active in 15 countries from China to Brazil. In 2009/10 twelve events
were organised by DARO, including networking and career sector-specific events. 66 people have signed up to
the alumni careers network, where alumni provide careers support to current students and fellow alumni. 1987
alumni responded to the recent survey, updating their contact and careers information.
Over the last year, the new programme has generated 9,237 updates to the alumni database, reflecting our
graduates’ wish to keep up to date with the programme. This also ensures the integrity of our data, which is key
for regular fundraising. 2010/11 will see the first University of Plymouth Telephone Campaign, and the
development of a direct mail programme.

Equality and Diversity
The University recognises the real educational and business benefits of having a diverse community of staff and
students who value one another and the different contributions they can make to achieve the University’s
mission to be open and accessible and to deliver teaching and research to world-class standards.
We are committed to providing equality for all irrespective of:
 age
 disability
 gender
 gender reassignment
 marriage and civil partnership
 pregnancy and maternity
 race
 religion or belief
 sexual orientation
We will continue to work to ensure that all our students, employees and visitors, as well as those who apply to
work or study with us, are fairly treated and not subjected to discrimination by the University on any of these
grounds.
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To support our equality and diversity policy aims and values, and to implement our legal commitments, the
University has a range of equality and diversity policies, schemes and action plans which complement and form
part of the overall policy.
The University participates in the Universities that Count Environmental and Social Responsibility Index and in
2010 Equality and Diversity was judged an area of Outstanding Achievement with a score in excess of 90%.
The University won two accolades in the 2009 Athena Swan awards which recognise and celebrate good
practice for women working in science, engineering and technology across higher education and research. The
University holds a bronze award for its overall approach and a silver award for the Faculty of Technology. On a
university-wide basis, the judges singled out the University for its gender balance on both the senior
management team and on influential decision making bodies and the University’s enterprise enabling
performance management system which helps staff optimise their individual contributions and capabilities. The
University was a finalist in the 2010 Women in Science and Engineering awards which encourage and celebrate
good practice in encouraging women to study and continue with subjects in these fields.
The University consistently performs at or above the Higher Education Funding Council for England (HEFCE)
benchmarks on many widening participation and completion benchmarks.
The key performance indicator (KPI) below demonstrates the percentage of staff turnover. The actual figure is
lower than the University’s expected target and the sector average of 8%. This reflects a number of factors
including the strategic review, where staff took redundancy or early retirement in the previous academic year,
the current economic climate, where opportunities outside of the University have reduced, and the fact that
over 95% of staff, as per the staff survey, feel that the University is a good place to work.
Key performance indicator – Employee turnover

Expected
Actual
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2009/10

2008/09

7.6%
4.8%

7.6%
6.4%

Section 2 - Our University
Research excellence

One of our key ambitions is to promote world-class research
and the University has developed a comprehensive
Research Strategy in accordance with its objectives. The
University’s performance in the 2008 Research Assessment
Exercise (RAE) established our position as a premier
institution achieving world class status in 18 of the 25 units
of assessment. The widely accepted and well respected
Research Fortnight's research power league table of the
results of the 2008 RAE, shows that Plymouth rose 15 places
to join the top 50 universities. This was the greatest
improvement of any University in the UK in research
performance since the last RAE in 2001. This has resulted in
allocation of QR funds to the University in the order of £9m.

We are building on our established world-class ratings across a range of subject areas, in particular marine,
biomedicine, environment, robotics, psychology, arts and health and have created eight Research Centres to
facilitate the activities required to deliver our objectives.
The key performance indicator (KPI) below demonstrates that the University continues to exceed expectations
in relation to research income.
Key performance indicator – Research income
Expected
Actual

2009/10

2008/09

10.0m
12.1m

£7.5m
£11.8m

Academic excellence
At the University of Plymouth we are particularly
proud of our academic excellence, our strong record
and external recognition of excellence in both
teaching and research. We are a national pilot for
two-year degrees, have 14 National Teaching Fellows,
host the national subject centre for Geography, Earth
and Environmental Sciences, and the Royal Statistical
Society Centre for Statistical Education - as well as the
legacy of hosting four government-funded Centres for
Excellence in Teaching & Learning from 2007 - 2010.
The University of Plymouth revised its academic structure to fully reflect its enterprise vision.
Key developments include:



the creation of a dynamic new Business School dedicated to ethical, sustainable business skills, and
supporting the economic regeneration of our city and region
bringing together complementary subjects in a new combined Faculty of Science and Technology
creating the largest Marine Science and Engineering School in Europe.
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Capital expenditure
The University has invested over £100m in its estate and infrastructure over the last six years as part of its
strategic vision to develop a single multi-faculty campus at the heart of the city of Plymouth.
The Roland Levinsky Building

The Nancy Astor Building

The iconic Roland Levinsky Building is home to the Faculty of Arts and also houses Peninsula Arts and the Jill
Craigie cinema, as well as academic and public spaces. More recently the Gateway has been established within
the building, offering employability and careers advice for students, graduates and businesses.
The Rolle Building

The Francis Drake Halls of Residence

The Rolle Building, which was completed in the summer of 2008, houses staff from the Faculty of Education,
University of Plymouth Colleges and Widening Participation. The Francis Drake halls of residence, which were
part of the same development, provide high quality accommodation for students in the heart of the campus.
Together with the Nancy Astor Building, this completes the most recent new build developments on the
campus.
During 2009 and moving into 2010 our focus has been on landscaping the campus and improving the quality of
the existing academic accommodation and the overall environment. The initial completion of the 'Southern
spine' has brought us closer to achieving our goal of physically linking the University with the city, making it
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easier for the people of Plymouth to walk through the University straight into the city centre. This has now
been further improved with the completion of the landscaping of Glanville Street connecting the City Library
and Museum with North Cross.
Improvements during 2010 have predominantly been to the campus infrastructure although a notable project
was the refurbishment of the ground floor of the Smeaton Building which has brought to a conclusion the
complete remodelling of the building over a number of years to adapt it to current needs. This sustainable
approach has maximised the building’s potential and considerably extended its operational life.
Much of the current focus is on the recently-started construction of a new world class Marine Building which
will house state-of-the-art research facilities including new wave tank testing equipment that will be unique in
the UK. This development will help position Plymouth as a global centre for marine energy research and create
valuable opportunities to support the marine sector and the economy.
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Section 3 – Corporate Social Responsibility
As the enterprise University we recognise our wider obligations to society. In this context our aim is to become
an exemplar in sustainability, social responsibility and responsible business practice, engaging with our wider
community and continually monitoring, improving and sharing our achievements.

Top green University in 2010
In 2010, the University of Plymouth was named as the UK's top university in environmental performance. The
annual People and Planet Green League table published in June 2010 ranked the University in the top spot number one out of 133 universities. The University also retains the accolade of being the league's top overall
performer since it was initiated in 2007. The Green League is the only league table ranking all UK universities by
environmental performance.
High environmental standards are part of the University's core business and are embedded into its estates
management programme through an innovative carbon management plan, Fair Trade status and the award of
an international standard for environmental management and performance - ISO14001. This expertise is
complemented in all aspects of the University's teaching, learning, research, business and community activities.
Plymouth enjoys leading research in this area with the Centre for Sustainable Transport and is currently
developing a new Sustainability Institute to build on the success of the University's Centre for Sustainable
Futures. The University has also recently established an Office of Procurement and Sustainability to take the
lead on further operationalising sustainable principles within its activities. It is based on eleven environmental
policy and performance-related criteria including carbon emissions per head, waste recycling rates and new
criteria measuring the sector’s efforts to engage students and staff in cutting carbon emissions.

Strategic approach to sustainability
The University articulates its sustainability commitment, aspirations and goals through its key policies and
strategies. These policies and strategies reflect a systematic review of sustainability risk and opportunity,
incorporating our ISO14001 accredited Environmental Management System.
The University has committed to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Developing education for sustainability and sustainability-literate graduates
Environmental, Social and Economic Sustainability as one of our 5 key areas of research
Conservation of natural resources used by the University
Minimising adverse environmental effects of travel relating to University business
Ethical and sustainable procurement
The well being of our people and employee relations
Raising aspiration and widening participation
Enhancing our community and public engagement

Performance is monitored against targets including through the recently accredited ISO14001 Environmental
Management System. Reports on performance in some areas are provided directly to the funding body, HEFCE,
such as through the Estate Management Statistics and the Higher Education Business and Community
Interaction survey.
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Universities that Count
For the last three years through the Universities that Count initiative we have been measuring our performance
against the Environment and Social Responsibility (ESR) Index - a voluntary, business led benchmark of
responsible business practice. The result of the University’s performance during the 2008/9 year was 85.9%
retaining its silver banding and appearing in seventh position. This score is just over 3% short of the gold
banding, a realistic target for next year.

Resource management
In terms of energy and water consumption and waste management, since 2004 the University has:







reduced carbon emissions by 17%, exceeding its 2009 target
achieved Carbon Trust accreditation under their Energy Efficiency Accreditation Scheme
reduced water consumption by 35%, exceeding its 2009 target
reduced the amount of waste it produced from 537 tonnes to 361 tonnes
increased the proportion of waste recycled from 11% to 49%
launched a Community Green Screen to communicate the health of the campus and its environmental
footprint.

The University is also committed to resource efficiency in relation to transportation and travel associated with
its day to day activities, and since 2004:




staff use of public transport has increased by 25%, exceeding the 2009 target
the University actively encourages use of city park and ride facilities during key events such as open days
and graduation ceremonies
the University’s Centre for Sustainable Transport is working towards becoming “… a centre of national
and international excellence in the field of sustainable transport”

Community Engagement Strategy
The University launched its Community Engagement Strategy in 2010. The strategy promotes partnership and
outlines the five key development themes:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Enabling our community to share the learning experience
Our students as residents, volunteers and global citizens
Communication and partnership working
Developing businesses and employability opportunities
Promoting vibrant cultural, sports and recreational opportunities

The strategy highlights some of the University-community achievements:






The Active in Communities project has run over a hundred events and involved over 12,000 people
840 students regularly take part in volunteering activities through the Students’ Union
The University is investing £2.5 million in the City’s Life Centre project
Each year over 12,000 students take part in a work-based placement
In 2008/9, the University’s outreach activities involved 40,000 people across the South West
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In 2007/8 £1.23 million was invested in community projects, including £811,000 through the University’s
bursary scheme, £300,000 for the development of the Drakes Garden area and £100,000 to support the
SW Film and Television Archive
In 2008/9, the University hosted a range of exhibitions, performances and public lectures through
Peninsula Arts – attracting more than 32,000 people onto campus
In 2010, the University’s Community Open House event was used to launch the start of Lord Mayor’s
day and involved over 3,000 members of the public coming onto campus to celebrate partnership and
community
The University has committed £50,000 for each of the last three years to supporting community
research initiatives through the Vice-Chancellor’s Community Research Awards.
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Section 4 – Financial
Key Financial Highlights


Surplus for the year before tax and exceptional items £6,199k (2008/09: £2,300k)



The historical cost surplus for the year was £14,948k (2008/09: £2,549k)



Key features contributing to the net result were:
-



Impact of FRS 17 pension scheme accounting
-



The University entered into a joint venture agreement with Plymouth City Council for the Tamar
Science Park Limited. To this end 50% of the company’s net assets and operating activities have been
consolidated in the University’s financial statements. The share of the operating surplus is £41k, with
£4.79m of net assets being recognised.

Balance sheet
-



charge to income and expenditure account of £3,120k (2008/09 - £2,150k)
balance sheet liability of £64.87m (2008/09 - £66.2m)
gain recognised in the statement of recognised gains and losses of £4.49m (2008/09 loss of £20.64m).
This is largely due to a government decision to increase pensions in line with the Consumer Price Index
rather than the Retail Price Index.

Joint Venture
-



additional student fee income
continued tight budgetary control over operating expenditure
the effect of the strategic review has seen a decrease in total staff FTEs
disposal of the Seale Hayne campus and individual buildings on the Exmouth campus realising a gain of
£1,664k (2008/09 – £868k)

net assets before pension scheme of £150.4m (2008/09 - £137.0m)
fixed assets of £215.8m (2008/09 - £211.0m)
long term creditors of £87.0m (2008/09 - £87.3m)

Cash flow
- net cash inflow from operating activities £36.6m (2008/09 – £9.9m).
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Scope of the Financial Statements
The financial statements comprise the consolidated results of the University and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
The subsidiary companies undertake research, consultancy and technology transfer activities together with the
provision of conferences, car parking facilities and facilities management. To minimise any corporation tax
charges, any taxable profits are gifted to the University by the subsidiaries.

Results for the year
The University's consolidated results for the year to 31 July 2010 are summarised as follows:2009/10
£000
Income

2008/09
£000

208,748

198,066

(202,549)

(195,766)

6,199

2,300

Share of joint venture operating surplus

41

-

Taxation

(5)

(149)

Surplus on disposal of fixed assets

1,664

868

Redundancy costs

(115)

(3,063)

Difference between historical cost depreciation and the actual charge for
the year calculated on the revalued amount and realisation of property
revaluation gains of previous years

7,164

2,593

14,948

2,549

Expenditure
Surplus on continuing operations after depreciation of tangible fixed
assets at valuation but before disposals of assets and taxation

Exceptional items :

Historical cost surplus for the year after taxation
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Overview
The University has recorded an operating surplus of £6.20m (2009: £2.30m) and a historical cost surplus of
£14.95m (2009: £2.55m). This is a significantly better result than was originally forecast, arising from improved
student recruitment and the consequent increase in fee income.
Key performance indicator
Operating surplus for the year as a % of income (before
surplus on disposal of fixed assets)

2009/10

2008/09

2007/08

2.96%

1.16%

1.43%

This result also reflects the ongoing impact of the Strategic Review, which was initiated in May 2008. This
focused on addressing a historic deficit position, securing greater efficiencies, and on maximising academic
synergies and the effectiveness of professional services support through the restructuring of faculties, schools
and directorates. Efficiencies are continuing to be achieved as a result benefit of the new structures.

Income
Overall, the University’s income increased by 5.4% in 2010 (2009: increase 9.5%). This reflects an increase in
Funding Body grants of 3.6% (2009: increase 7.3%), a 15.1% increase in tuition fee and education contract
income (2009: increase 16.5%), a 2.3% increase in research grant income (2009: decrease 4.1%) and a 10.6%
decrease in other income (2009: increase 16.8%).
Figure 1: Types of income as a % of total income
Research grants and
contracts 5.8%

Other income 9.2%

Endowment and
investment income 0.1%

Education contracts 8.8%

Overseas tuition fees
3.5%

Funding body grants
52.5%

Home/EU Tuition fees
20.1%

The University is still very reliant on Funding Body grants although the proportion of its HEFCE/TDA recurrent
funding of total income fell slightly this year from 53% to 52%.
The fourth year of variable fees has impacted on the tuition fee income together with a 24% increase in non- EU
income. The development of the Internationalisation Strategy and increased investment in the International
Office is beginning to deliver increased student numbers. The proposed changes to funding will require a
rebalancing of activity given our exposure to reductions in HEFCE T-funding.
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Expenditure
Total expenditure for the University increased to £203m from £196m in 2009, an increase of 3.5%. Staff costs
show a decrease of 1.1% on the previous year (2009: increase 3.5%). Other operating expenses have increased
by 11.3% (2009: increase 14.9%). An area of significant increase is the payments to partner colleges, which have
increased from £27.8m to £30.7m. Associated partner colleges are funded by the University which obtains
matching HEFCE income.

Figure 2: Types of expenditure as a % of total expenditure
Depreciation 4.0%

Interest payable
3.0%

Payments to
partner colleges
15.2%

Staff costs 52.3%

Other operating
expenses 25.5%

The University has set itself a target of keeping staff costs as a percentage of total expenditure below 58% and
has achieved this for the second year in a row. Non staff expenditure has increased this year, largely as a result
of increased consumable and equipment purchases in the year.

Key Performance indicator

2009/10

2008/09

2007/08

Pay expenditure (excluding redundancy costs) as a %
of total expenditure

52%

55%

58%

Non-pay expenditure* as a % of total expenditure

41%

38%

36%

*Non- pay expenditure excludes depreciation, impairment and interest charged in the year

Capital expenditure
The capital program associated with the closure of the other University campuses is now complete. During
2009/10 a total of £20.7m (2008/09: £10.6m) was spent on equipment and improving existing buildings on the
Plymouth campus.
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Balance sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows an increase in net assets of £14.8m (2009: £7.1m reduction) mainly due
to the increase in cash balances during the year resulting from property disposals and a minimal movement on
the Pension Fund liability at the year end.
Tangible fixed assets have increased by £3.5m (2009: £7.7m decrease). This includes the capitalisation of the
John Bull building of £6.8m and the transfer of the Exmouth and Exeter campuses to current assets for resale,
causing a reduction of £9.1m. The Seale Hayne campus was disposed of during the year along with individual
buildings on the Exmouth campus.
Fixed assets also include negative goodwill of £3.3m relating to the acquisition of the joint venture in Tamar
Science Park Limited and a net investment, equal to the share of net assets, of £4.8m relating to the joint
venture.
There has been a considerable improvement in the current asset position since last year, £80.2m at 31 July
2010 compared to £57.0m at 31 July 2009. The University and its subsidiaries were holding £24.0m more cash
and investment reserves than at the same time last year, partly due to the disposal of the Seale Hayne Campus,
delays in the capital expenditure program and receipts of capital grant funding for buildings that are under
construction.
Current liabilities have increased by £14.5m (2009: £7.5m decrease) compared to the same time last year,
largely as a result of increased accruals and deferred income in respect of capital works. This, together with the
much improved current asset position, has led to ratio of current assets to current liabilities of 152%.

Key Performance indicator
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities

2009/10

2008/09

2007/08

152%

149%

94%

Creditors of more than one year includes loan balances held with HSBC Plc and Lloyds TSB Plc and other long
term creditors relating to amounts of rent received in advance for the Robbins and Gilwell halls of residence,
£6.9m, and the Veysey building located on the Exeter campus.
The finance lease of £19.0m for the Rolle building will be released to the Income and Expenditure account over
a 35 year period.
Key Performance indicator

2009/10

2008/09

2007/08

External borrowings* as % of total income

26.7%

29.0%

32.5%

External borrowings* as % of reserves (excluding
pension liability)

66.0%

78.1%

82.2%

*External borrowings include bank loans only
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The pension scheme liability reflects the University’s share of the Devon County Council pension scheme deficit
in line with the requirements of FRS 17. The deficit has decreased by £1.37m (2009: increase £22.8m) and this
has led to a decreased liability of £64.87m. A gain of £4.5m has been recognised in the statement of recognised
gains and losses and this is largely due to the government decision to increase future pensions in line with the
Consumer Price Index rather than the Retail Price Index. Net costs recognised in the income and expenditure
account are £3.13m (2009: £2.15m).

Cash flow
The University cash flow shows an increase of cash balances (excluding investments) in the year of £9.2m
(2009: a decrease of £2.5m). The key movements in the year being £5.1m of deferred capital grants received,
mainly relating to the NHS and HEFCE funding for the dental building and the Marine building respectively,
£9.7m received from the sale of fixed assets to include the Seale Hayne campus and individual properties on
the Exmouth campus, £20.7m capital expenditure and a £15.8m increase in investments.

Treasury Management Policy
The University’s surplus cash deposits are invested in accordance with the University’s Treasury Management
Policy and are either placed with Royal London Cash Management or directly with institutions by the University.
The University adopts a prudent approach to the investment of surplus funds. To protect capital sums invested,
the University‘s fund managers are instructed to invest in institutions carrying a minimum rating of AA(Standard and Poor’s). Monies are placed on the London short term money markets, with the prime
requirement being to ensure that the capital sum is not at risk. It is the University’s policy that no trading in
financial instruments shall be undertaken and speculative practices avoided.

Creditors Payment Policy
In order to comply with the Late Payment of Debts Act, and to optimise its negotiating position with external
suppliers, the University aims to settle all creditor payments within a maximum of 28 days from the receipt of a
valid invoice. On average the University took 28 days to pay its creditors from the date of issue of the invoice
(2008/09: 28 days).
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Corporate Governance Statement
The University is committed to best practice in all aspects of corporate governance. This summary describes the
manner in which the University has applied the principles set out in Section 1 of the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance issued by the London Stock Exchange in June 2008. Its purpose is to help the reader of
the financial statements understand how the principles have been applied.
In the opinion of the Board of Governors, the University complies with all the provisions of the Combined Code
in so far as they apply to the Higher Education Sector, and it has complied throughout the year ended 31 July
2010. The Board of Governors can also confirm that the University continues to comply with the provisions of
the Committee of University Chairmen (CUC) Guide for Members of Higher Education Governing Bodies, and
the advice contained in the Guidance on Corporate Governance for Higher Education issued by the British
Universities Finance Directors’ Group (BUFDG) in 2006.
The University is also an exempt charity under Schedule 2 of the Charities Act 1993 and as such the Board of
Governors act as trustees. The Board can confirm that the University had due regard to the Charity
Commission’s guidance on public benefit, as detailed in the Operating and Financial Review. A full list of
trustees is provided on page 3.

Governance structure
The University’s Instrument and Articles of Government establish the structural framework of governance. The
University’s Board of Governors is constituted in accordance with the Instrument: in 2009/10 it comprised
twenty-two non-executive governors plus the Vice-Chancellor as an ex-officio executive member. The majority
of governors were independent lay members with experience of industry, the professions, commercial or
employment matters, or members co-opted on the basis of their knowledge and experience of education
matters; there were also three academic staff members, one member of professional services staff and two
student members, the President of the Students’ Union and the Chair of the Student Parliament. One new
governor was appointed in August 2009. One governor retired in November 2009 and three governors retired
in Summer 2010, and have not been replaced, in line with the Board’s decision to reduce its overall
membership to no more than eighteen governors by 2011/12. The Board held three scheduled meetings and
one extraordinary meeting during the year, plus two away days to discuss issues of strategic importance.
The University understands the need for a clear separation of the roles of the non-executive Chair of the Board
of Governors and the Vice-Chancellor and Chief Executive. The Board of Governors approves and monitors the
University’s long-term strategic objectives and budgets and is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
University’s systems of internal control. It also has responsibilities for the educational character and mission of
the University, and to this end, the Vice-Chancellor and the University Secretary and Registrar ensure that the
Board is kept fully apprised of, and has the opportunity to contribute to, strategic discussions: one of the away
days in 2009/10 focused on the issues of governance and risk management associated with potential
partnership developments, and the other on the University’s external engagement and regional impact.
The Board is charged with specific responsibilities under the University’s Articles of Government, under
financial and other agreements with funding bodies, and by statutory authority, and such matters are
presented to the Board in the form of approvals and regular reports. The Vice-Chancellor, supported by the
Chief Executive’s Group and the Senior Management Team, is responsible for the leadership and management
of the University and for ensuring that the University meets its academic and financial objectives. The ViceChancellor is the University’s Accounting Officer.
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The Board has established several committees, including a Finance Committee, an Audit Committee, an
Employment Committee, a Nominations Committee and a Remuneration Committee. The Employment and
Remuneration Committee, which had previously operated as a combined body, was disestablished in 2009/10
and replaced by separate committees in line with sector best practice. Each committee is formally constituted
with clear terms of reference. Membership is largely drawn from members of the Board, although there is
provision for co-opted independent members with relevant professional expertise who are not members of the
University or of the Board of Governors. In 2009/10, the Audit Committee and the Finance Committee each
included two such co-opted members.
In 2009/10, the Audit Committee met on five occasions, with the internal auditors always in attendance. The
external auditors attended for those meetings concerned with the presentation of the audit strategy and
consideration of the financial statements and management letter. The Committee considers detailed reports
and recommendations concerning the University’s systems of risk management and internal control, together
with management responses and action plans. It also receives and considers reports from the Funding Council
as appropriate and monitors adherence to regulatory requirements. Senior executives attend meetings of the
Audit Committee as necessary but are not members of the Committee. The internal and external auditors meet
privately with the governor members of the Committee annually, and have direct access to the Committee
Chair at any time.
The Finance Committee makes recommendations to the Board about the University’s financial strategy,
including annual and long term capital and revenue plans, about the financial viability and financial
management of capital projects, and about the University’s Financial Statements and financial forecasts. It
regularly monitors performance in relation to budgets.
The Employment Committee makes recommendations to the Board about strategic employment issues and the
framework governing the pay and conditions of service of staff, and the Remuneration Committee determines
the guidelines to be applied to the determination of management salaries and the remuneration of the most
senior staff, including the Vice-Chancellor.
The Nominations Committee considers the skills set available to the Board and issues of succession planning,
advises on mechanisms for securing the services of new governors, including advertisement and interview, and
identifies preferred candidates to the Board.

Formal Statement of the Board of Governors’ Responsibilities
In accordance with the University's Articles of Government, the Board of Governors, through the ViceChancellor, is responsible for the administration and management of the University’s affairs, including ensuring
an effective system of internal control, and is required to present audited financial statements for each
financial year.
Within the terms and conditions of a Financial Memorandum agreed between the Higher Education Funding
Council for England and the University, the Board of Governors, through the Vice-Chancellor, is required to
prepare Financial Statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the University’s state of
affairs and of the surplus or deficit and cash flows for that year. The Board is also responsible, through the
Vice-Chancellor, for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the University. In causing the Financial Statements to be prepared, the Board of
Governors has ensured that:



suitable accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
judgements and estimates are made that are reasonable and prudent;
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applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures being disclosed
and explained in the financial statements;
the University has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future: for this
reason the going concern basis continues to be adopted in the preparation of the financial statements.

The Board of Governors has taken reasonable steps to:







ensure that funds from the Higher Education Funding Council for England are used only for the purposes
for which they have been given and in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the Funding
Council and any other conditions which the Funding Council may from time to time prescribe;
ensure that funds from the Training and Development Agency for Schools are used only for the
purposes for which they have been given and in accordance with the Funding Agreement with the
Training and Development Agency for Schools and any other conditions which the Training and
Development Agency for Schools may from time to time prescribe;
ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public funds
and funds from other sources;
safeguard the assets of the University and prevent and detect fraud;
secure the economical, efficient and effective management of the University’s resources and
expenditure to achieve value for money.

The Board engages in regular internal review of its own performance. In 2009/10 this took the form of an
internal audit of governance, using a survey developed by the Leadership Foundation for Higher Education.
This was adapted from one used by the Audit Commission which was itself derived from the Good Governance
Standard developed by the Independent Commission for Good Governance in Public Services. This will be
followed up in Autumn 2010 by further more detailed discussions, conducted by an independent facilitator,
with members of the Board and the University’s senior management, focused on both the skills needed in
membership of the Board and the information requirements of governors, with particular reference to
information about stakeholder perceptions.

Internal control
The Board of Governors is responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal control to support the
achievement of the University’s policies, aims and strategic objectives, while safeguarding the public and other
funds and assets for which it is responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to the Board in the
Articles of Government and the Financial Memorandum. The Board of Governors is also responsible for
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system.
The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
strategic objectives. It can therefore provide a reasonable, not absolute, assurance of effectiveness. The system
is based on an ongoing process designed to identify, evaluate and manage, efficiently, effectively and
economically, the strategic risks facing the University. This process has been in place for the year ended 31 July
2010 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements, and accords with HEFCE guidance. The
University is therefore compliant with Funding Council requirements.
The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed inter alia by the work of Mazars,
the University’s internal auditors. The internal auditors submit an annual report to the Audit Committee and
the Board of Governors which includes an independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
institution’s overall system of internal control, with recommendations for improvement.
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The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is also informed by the work of senior
managers within the institution, who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal
control framework, and by comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and other
reports.

Risk management
The role of the Board of Governors is to manage and report on risk at a strategic level, by determining the
University’s risk appetite and the acceptable risk level, satisfying itself that the University’s actual levels of risk
do not exceed the agreed levels, approving major decisions affecting the University’s risk profile, monitoring
the management of corporate risks, setting the tone and influencing the culture of risk management within the
University, and satisfying itself that the processes for embedding risk management are working effectively. The
Board considers an amended corporate risk register in July of each year, together with a review of the
University’s risk management policy as appropriate.
In meeting its responsibilities, the Board relies heavily on advice from the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee and the internal auditors have continued an approach to risk-based audit which integrates more
closely operational audits and reviews of associated risk. Review processes cover business risk, operational risk
and compliance, as well as financial risk. There is also an annual audit of risk management, and of Value for
Money, which in 2009/10 resulted in assessments of substantial assurance. The Committee also commissioned
a number of strategic audits linked with the University’s key objectives.
The Office of the Vice-Chancellor is responsible for implementing the risk management arrangements approved
by the Board of Governors; for identifying, evaluating and monitoring the risks associated with their decisions
and with proposals made to the Board; and for ensuring that managers within the University fulfil their
responsibilities for risk management.
In addition to the corporate risk register, all faculties and directorates produce local risk registers, and specific
risk registers are maintained for major projects.
The Chief Executive’s Group and the Senior Management Team regularly review the corporate risk register and
the Audit Committee receives a report at each meeting highlighting changes in the assurance framework
including new or amended risks and movement in risk ratings.
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Independent auditors’ report to the Board of Governors of the
University of Plymouth
We have audited the financial statements’ of University of Plymouth and its group for the year ended 31 July
2010 which comprise the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account, the Consolidated Balance Sheets, the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses and the
related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Respective responsibilities of the governing body and auditors
The governing body’s responsibilities for preparing the financial statements in accordance with the Accounts
Direction issued by the Higher Education Funding Council for England, the Statement of Recommended Practice
– Accounting for Further and Higher Education, applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of the Governing Body’s
Responsibilities.
Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements, and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including the opinion, has
been prepared for and only for the governing body of the institution in accordance with the institution’s
Articles of Government and section 124B of the Education Reform Act 1988 and for no other purpose. We do
not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or in to whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent
in writing.
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher
Education, the Accounts Direction issued by the Higher Education Funding Council for England and United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.
We report to you whether in our opinion, funds from funding bodies, grants and income for specific purposes
and from other restricted funds administered by the institution, have been properly applied in all material
respects for the purposes for which they were received, and whether income has been applied in all material
respects in accordance with the institution’s statutes and where appropriate with the financial memorandum
with the Higher Education Funding Council for England (HEFCE) and with the funding agreement with the
Training and Development Agency for Schools.
We also report to you if, in our opinion, the information given in the Operating and Finance review is not
consistent with those financial statements, the institution has not kept proper accounting records, or if we have
not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider the implications for our report if
we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.
This other information comprises only the Operating and Financial Review, and the Corporate Governance
Statement).
We also review the statement of internal control included as part of the Corporate Governance Statement and
comment if the statement is inconsistent with our knowledge of the institution and the group. We are not
required to consider whether the statement of internal control covers all risks and controls, or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of the institution's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control
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procedures. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other
information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board and with the HEFCE Accountability and Audit Code of Practice contained in the
Financial Memorandum 2008/19. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the governing body in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and institution’s circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:
i.

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and the institution’s
affairs at 31 July 2010, and of the institution’s / group’s income and expenditure, recognised gains
and losses, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

ii.

the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Statement of
Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher Education, the Accounts Direction
issued by the Higher Education Funding Council for England and United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice;

iii.

in all material respects, funds from the Higher Education Funding Council for England, and the
Training and Development Agency for Schools grants and income for specific purposes and from
other restricted funds administered by the institution have been properly applied only for the
purposes for which they were received; and

iv.

in all material respects, income has been applied in accordance with the institution's statutes and
funds provided by HEFCE have been applied in accordance with the financial memorandum
(2008/19) with the Higher Education Funding Council for England and any other terms and
conditions attached to them and funds from the Training and Development Agency for Schools have
been applied in accordance with the funding agreement with the Training and Development Agency
for Schools.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Plymouth
th
25 November 2010
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Statement of principal accounting policies
Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice
(SORP): Accounting for Further and Higher Education Institutions 2007 and in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.

Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of
certain land and buildings not required as value at cost.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the University and all its subsidiary undertakings for the financial
year to 31 July 2010. Intra-company sales and profits are eliminated fully on consolidation. In accordance with
FRS 2 Accounting for subsidiary undertakings, the consolidated financial statements do not include those of the
University of Plymouth Students' Union, as it is a separate organisation in which the University has no financial
interest and no control or significant influence over policy decisions. The University is party to a joint
arrangement for the Peninsula College of Medicine and Dentistry, which is not an entity. The University
accounts directly for its 50% share of the income, expenditure, assets, liabilities and cash flows (excluding
Research). The items comprising the externally funded Research activity are included within the University
employing each project’s Principal Investigator. Such arrangements are reported in the consolidated financial
statements on the same basis. The University is also considered to jointly control Tamar Science Park Limited.
The University accounts directly for its 50% share of the income, expenditure, assets, liabilities and cash flows
of this entity following it attaining joint control. Uniform accounting policies have been adopted by the
University and its subsidiaries. Where accounting policies differ in the joint ventures, these have been adjusted
to be in accordance with the group policies for purposes of these financial statements.

Recognition of income
Income from research grants, tuition fees, contracts and other services rendered is included to the extent of
the completion of the contract or service concerned. This is generally equivalent to the sum of the relevant
expenditure incurred during the year and any related contributions towards overhead costs. Surpluses arising
on contracts are recognised in the period to which they relate.
All income from short-term deposits and general endowment asset investments is credited to the income and
expenditure account in the period in which it is earned.
Recurrent grants from the Funding Councils are recognised in the period in which they are receivable. Capital
grants from Funding Councils or other bodies received in respect of the acquisition or construction of fixed
assets are treated as deferred capital grants and amortised in line with depreciation over the life of the assets.

Maintenance of premises
The University has produced a costed long-term maintenance plan for buildings. In accordance with the
requirements of FRS 12 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the cost of maintenance is
charged to the income and expenditure accounts as incurred.
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Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the dates of the
transactions. All exchange differences are dealt with in the income and expenditure account. Monetary assets
and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date.

Research and Development expenditure
Expenditure on research and development is written off to the income and expenditure account in the year in
which it is incurred.

Pension schemes
Retirement benefits for employees are provided by defined benefit schemes which are funded by contributions
from the University and employees. Most academic staff are members of the Department for Education's
Teachers' Pension Scheme. There are particular circumstances in which a few members of staff are eligible for
the Universities’ Superannuation Scheme and some members of the Peninsula College of Medicine and
Dentistry are eligible for membership of the Department of Health's NHS Pension Scheme. Most other salaried
employees and many weekly paid employees are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme run by
Devon County Council. All schemes are independently administered.
Contributions to the schemes, except for the Devon County Council pension scheme, are charged to the income
and expenditure account so as to spread the cost of the pensions over the employees’ working lives with the
University in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of present and future
pensionable payroll. Variations from regular costs are spread over the expected average remaining working
lifetime of members of the schemes after making allowances for further withdrawals.
The University of Plymouth participates in the Devon County Council Pension Fund. The Fund, which is part of
the Local Government Pension Scheme, provides benefits based on final pensionable salary. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group. Pension scheme assets are measured using market
values. Pension scheme liabilities are measured using a projected unit method and discounted at the current
rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liability. The pension
scheme surplus (to the extent that it is recoverable) or deficit is recognised in full. The movement in the scheme
surplus/deficit is split between operating charges, finance items and, in the statement of total recognised gains
and losses, actuarial gains and losses. This is a defined benefits scheme and is valued every three years by a
professionally qualified actuary using the projected unit method, the rates of contribution payable being
determined by the actuary.
The Teachers' Pension Scheme is valued every five years by the Government Actuary who specifies the
contribution rate paid by the University. The Department for Education operates a notional fund for this
scheme. The University has no liability for pensions or pension increases for past employees in this scheme. The
University is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent
and reasonable basis and therefore, as required by FRS 17 “Retirement benefits”, accounts for the scheme as if
it were a defined contribution scheme. As a result, the amount charged to the income and expenditure
account represents the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the accounting period.
The University participates in the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS), a defined benefit scheme which is
externally funded and contracted out of the State Second Pension (S2P). The assets of the scheme are held in a
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separate trustee-administered fund. Because of the mutual nature of the scheme, the scheme’s assets are not
hypothecated to individual institutions and a scheme-wide contribution rate is set. The University is therefore
exposed to actuarial risks associated with other institutions’ employees and is unable to identify its share of the
underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore, as required
by FRS 17 “Retirement benefits”, accounts for the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. As a
result, the amount charged to the income and expenditure account represents the contributions payable to the
scheme in respect of the accounting period.
The NHS Pension Scheme is valued every five years by the Government Actuary who specifies the contribution
rate paid by the University. The Department of Health operates a notional fund for this scheme. The University
has no liability for pensions or pension increases for past employees in this scheme.

Tangible fixed assets
a.

Land and buildings

The University has taken advantage of the transitional arrangements available on the first adoption of FRS 15
Tangible Fixed Assets not to update the value of its land and buildings. The land and buildings were the subject
of a comprehensive revaluation carried out by Chesterton property consultants as at 31 March 1990. The basis
of valuation is in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors’ guidance notes. These direct that,
where possible, assets should be valued on the basis of existing use or open market value. The guidance notes
recognise that in the case of specialist buildings this may not always be possible and in those cases valuation
should be on the basis of depreciated replacement cost. The consultants used both approaches in their
valuation.
As part of the same survey the property consultants estimated the remaining life of each building, typically 20
to 50 years. Buildings acquired after the survey are shown at cost less depreciation based on a life of 50 years.
All buildings are depreciated on a straight line basis. Land is not depreciated.
Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants they are capitalised and depreciated as
above. The related grants are credited to a deferred capital grant account and are released to the income and
expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the
depreciation policy.
A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the fixed asset may not be recoverable.
Assets in the course of construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and
other direct costs incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.
Finance costs which are directly attributable to the construction of buildings are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Such interest is capitalised only up until the date the relevant building is brought into use. The
rate of interest used is the applicable cost of funds during this period.
Investment properties held in the University’s joint venture company are held at market value. These
properties are revalued annually and any surplus or deficit arising is taken to the revaluation reserve. No
provision is made for the depreciation of these properties in accordance with SSAP 19. Revaluations are
conducted annually by an external valuer in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards (red book)
issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors effective from January 2008.
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b.

Equipment

Equipment costing less than £15,000 per individual item or group of related items is written off to the income
and expenditure account in the year of acquisition. All other equipment is capitalised at cost.
Capitalised equipment is depreciated over its useful economic life using the straight-line method. The life of
each asset is established on acquisition and may fall within the range of three to ten years depending on its
nature. For a group of related items of computer equipment purchased as part of a networking/software
enhancement programme, the life is established by reference to the date of the next proposed upgrade.
When equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants it is capitalised and depreciated in accordance with
the above policy, with the related grant being credited to a deferred capital grant account and released to the
income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related equipment.

Leased assets
Leasing agreements which transfer to the University substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of an
asset are treated as if the asset had been purchased outright and are capitalised at their fair value at the
inception of the lease and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the useful economic lives of
equivalently owned assets. The capital element outstanding is shown as obligations under finance leases.
The finance charges are allocated over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital element outstanding.
Where finance lease payments are funded in full from funding council capital equipment grants, the associated
assets are designated as grant-funded assets.
Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term to the income and
expenditure account.

Investments
Listed fixed asset investments are held at market price. Fixed asset investments that are not listed on a
recognised stock exchange are carried at historical cost less any provision for impairment in their value.
Endowment asset investments are included in the balance sheet at market value. Current asset investments are
included in the balance sheet at the lower of their original cost and net realisable value, and relate to short
term deposits.

Stocks
Stocks represent consumable materials held by catering outlets and materials held by Information and
Learning Services.. They are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Where necessary, provision is
made for obsolete, slow moving and defective stocks.
Contract work in progress relates to projects being undertaken and is stated at costs incurred, less those
transferred to the income and expenditure account, after deducting foreseeable losses and payments on
account not matched with turnover.
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Taxation
The University is an exempt charity within the meaning of Schedule 2 of the Charities Act 1993 and as such is a
charity within the meaning of Section 506 (1) of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act (ICTA) 1988.
Accordingly, the University is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received
within categories covered by Section 505 of the ICTA 1988 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains
Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied to exclusively charitable purposes. However the
University does have some trading income, which is subject to Corporation Tax in the same way as commercial
organisations.
The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of
timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes. Deferred tax
is recognised, without discounting, in respect of all timing differences between the treatment of certain items
for taxation and accounting purposes which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as
otherwise required by FRS 19.
The University received no exemption in respect of Value Added Tax. The University’s subsidiary companies are
subject to corporation tax and Value Added Tax in the same way as any commercial organisation.

Liquid resources
Liquid resources include sums on short-term deposits with recognised banks and building societies and
government securities.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the institution has a present legal or constructive obligation where, as a result
of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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Consolidated income and expenditure account
for the year ended 31 July 2010
Note

Year ended
31 July 2010
£000

Year ended
31 July 2009
£000

INCOME
Funding Body grants

1

108,625

104,836

Tuition fees and education contracts

2

69,647

60,493

Research grants and contracts

3

12,115

11,845

Other income

4

18,073

20,220

Endowment and investment income

5

288

672

208,748

198,066

Total income

EXPENDITURE
Staff costs

6

(105,523)

(106,707)

Other operating expenses

8

(82,880)

(74,462)

Depreciation

13

(8,080)

(8,003)

Impairment of properties

13

-

(1,465)

Interest and other finance costs

10

(6,066)

(5,129)

(202,549)

(195,766)

6,199

2,300

Total expenditure
Surplus after depreciation of tangible fixed assets at valuation
and before tax
Share of Joint Venture operating surplus

16

41

-

Taxation

11

(5)

(149)

6,235

2,151

Surplus on disposal of fixed assets

1,664

868

Redundancy costs

(115)

(3,063)

7,784

(44)

(6)

(2)

7,778

(46)

Surplus before exceptional items
Exceptional items:

Surplus/(deficit) on continuing operations after depreciation of
tangible fixed assets, disposal of assets and tax
Deficit for the year transferred from endowment funds
Surplus/(deficit) for the year retained within general reserves
The income and expenditure account is in respect of continuing activities.

45

12

Consolidated statement of historical cost surpluses and deficits
for the year ended 31 July 2010
Note
Surplus on continuing operations before taxation but after
exceptional items

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

7,789

105

Difference between historical cost depreciation and the actual
charge for the year calculated on the revalued amount

27

656

1,459

Realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years

27

6,508

1,134

Historical cost surplus for the year before taxation

14,953

2,698

Historical cost surplus for the year after taxation

14,948

2,549

Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses for
the year ended 31 July 2010
Note
Surplus/(deficit) on continuing operations after depreciation of
assets at valuation and taxation

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

7,778

(46)

Actuarial loss on pension scheme

39

(3,900)

(20,640)

Actuarial gain on change of pension scheme policy

39

8,390

-

Movement on endowments

26

6

73

12,274

(20,613)

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

7,430

28,043

Total recognised gains/(losses) for the year

12,274

(20,613)

Closing reserves and endowments

19,704

7,430

Total recognised gains/(losses) relating to the year

Reconciliation
Opening reserves and endowments
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Balance sheets as at 31 July 2010
Not
e
Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Investments
Share of Joint Venture assets
Share of Joint Venture liabilities

Consolidated
2010
£000

University
2010
£000

Consolidated
2009
£000

University
2009
£000

213,990
1,645
215,635
153

210,750
76
210,826
147

210,661
70
210,731
147

13
14
15
16
16

Endowment asset investments
Current assets
Stock
Assets held for resale
Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one
year
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
Investments (liquid resources)
Cash at bank and in hand

17

214,242
(3,269)
75
8,705
(3,919)
215,834
153

18
19

201
9,652

83
9,652

326
8,582

164
8,582

20

1,750

1,750

7,515

7,515

20

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

21

18,868
41,590
8,184
80,245
(52,675)

18,303
41,281
8,134
79,203
(51,922)

14,841
25,746
57,010
(38,184)

15,270
25,120
56,651
(37,761)

27,570

27,281

18,826

18,890

243,557

243,069

229,799

229,768

22

(87,032)

(86,800)

(87,340)

(87,247)

24

(6,118)

(6,118)

(5,457)

(5,457)

150,407

150,151

137,002

137,064

39

(64,870)

(64,870)

(66,240)

(66,240)

25

85,537
65,833

85,281
65,645

70,762
63,332

70,824
63,282

26

86
67
153

86
67
153

99
48
147

99
48
147

28

57,605

57,537

39,543

39,655

28

(64,870)

(64,870)

(66,240)

(66,240)

(7,265)

(7,333)

(26,697)

(26,585)

26,816

26,816

33,980

33,980

Total reserves

19,551

19,483

7,283

7,395

TOTAL FUNDS

85,537

85,281

70,762

70,824

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than
one year
Provisions for liabilities
NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION SCHEME LIABILITIES

Pension scheme liabilities
NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION SCHEME LIABILITIES

Deferred capital grants
Endowment funds
Permanent
Expendable
Reserves
Income and expenditure account excluding
pension reserve
Pension reserve
Income and expenditure account including
pension reserve
Revaluation reserve

27

The financial statements on pages 40 to 73 were approved by the Board of Governors on 24/11/2010 and were signed on its behalf
by: -

Nick Buckland
Chair of the Board of Governors

Professor Wendy Purcell
Vice-Chancellor and Chief Executive
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 July 2010
Note

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

Net cash inflow from operating activities

29

36,601

9,892

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

30

(1,622)

(1,924)

Capital expenditure

31

(7,373)

1,538

Management of liquid resources

33

(15,844)

(10,775)

Financing

32

(2,610)

(1,243)

9,152

(2,512)

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year

33

9,152

(2,512)

Cash outflow from repayment of loans

32

1,713

1,352

Cash outflow/(inflow) from finance lease

32

600

(109)

Cash outflow from liquid resources

33

15,844

10,775

Other non-cash changes

33

(1,015)

(18,754)

26,294

(9,248)

Movement in net debt in year
Net debt at 1 August

33

(51,322)

(42,074)

Net debt at 31 July

33

(25,028)

(51,322)
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Notes to the financial statements
1 Funding Body grants
HEFCE
£000

TDA
£000

2009/10
Total
£000

83,168

4,795

87,963

88,649

9,590

-

9,590

4,734

8,283

277

8,560

8,372

1,832
680

-

1,832
680

2,011
1,070

103,553

5,072

108,625

104,836

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

Full-time UK and European Union (EU) students
Full-time non-EU students
Part-time students
Special and short course fees
Total fees paid by or on behalf of individual students

38,700
7,246
2,591
807
49,344

32,406
6,425
2,024
1,047
41,902

Education contracts

20,303

18,591

Total

69,647

60,493

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

Recurrent teaching grants
Recurrent research grants
Specific grants:
Other
Releases of deferred capital grants:
Buildings (note 25)
Equipment (note 25)
Total

2008/09
Total
£000

2 Tuition fees and education contracts

3 Research grants and contracts

Research councils
UK based charities
UK based government bodies
UK based industry and commerce
European grants and contracts
Other overseas grants and contracts
Releases of deferred capital grants re equipment (note 23)
Other grants and contracts

Total
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3,680
1,451
3,072
379
2,651
245
66
571

3,713
1,509
3,936
546
1,103
370
64
604

12,115

11,845

4 Other income

Residences, catering and conferences
Other grant income
Nursery income
Rental and car park income
Educational visits and field trips
Student fines
Recreation income
Other miscellaneous income

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

2,069
8,883
452
621
559
162
385
4,942

2,506
9,735
449
635
654
185
354
5,702

18,073

20,220

2009/10
£000
1
1
286

2008/09
£000
2
1
669

288

672

5 Endowment and investment income

Income from expendable endowments
Income from permanent endowments
Income from short term investments
Total Endowment and investment income

6 Staff costs
The average weekly number of persons (including senior post-holders) employed by the University during the year, expressed as fulltime equivalents (FTEs), was:

Teaching departments
Academic support services
Administration and central services
Premises
Other income-generating activities
Catering and residences
Total

50

2009/10
Number
1,430
272
388
181
88
53

2008/09
Number
1,477
282
403
197
79
58

2,412

2,496

6 Staff costs (continued)
2009/10

2008/09

£000

£000

86,365
7,013
12,145

86,967
7,077
12,663

105,523

106,707

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

84,418
21,105

82,078
24,629

105,523

106,707

Emoluments of the Vice-Chancellor (VC):

2009/10
£

2008/09
£

Salary
Pension contributions
Benefits in kind

247,916
34,956
632

207,400
28,115
605

Total

283,504

236,120

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs
Total

Employment costs for staff on permanent contracts
Employment costs for staff on short-term and temporary contracts
Total

7 Senior post-holders' emoluments

The number of staff, including staff in the Peninsula College of Medicine and Dentistry, excluding the Vice-Chancellor, who received
emoluments in the following ranges, excluding employer's pension contributions, were:

£100,000 - £109,999
£110,000 - £119,999
£120,000 - £129,999
£130,000 - £139,999
£140,000 - £149,999
£150,000 - £159,999
£160,000 - £169,999
£170,000 - £179,999
£180,000 - £189,999
£190,000 - £199,999

2009/10
Number

2008/09
Number

1
2
2
1
4
1
1
1

4
2
2
3
1
1
1
1

The aggregate total of these senior staff emoluments including the Vice-Chancellor was £2,132,718 (£2,304,413 in 2008/09), including
benefits in kind.
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8 Other operating expenses

Payments to partner institutions (see note below)
Residences, catering and conferences operating expenses
Consumables
Books and periodicals
Heat, light, water and power
Repairs and general maintenance
Grants to University of Plymouth Students’ Union
Rents
Equipment
External auditors’ remuneration
External auditors’ remuneration in respect of non-audit services
Internal auditors’ remuneration
Hire of other assets
Other expenses

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

30,683
1,459
3,296
3,366
3,063
975
955
1,989
4,105
83
14
83
2,704
30,105

27,750
1,215
2,599
2,654
3,713
995
832
1,856
2,352
73
23
99
2,638
27,663

82,880

74,462

Associated partner colleges delivering University of Plymouth programmes are funded by the University which obtains matching
HEFCE income. These funds are managed separately from internal University HEFCE funds.
Within the rents figure above is £515,000 (2008/09 £675,000) paid in the year in relation to operating leases for land and buildings.
Within the Hire of other assets figure above is £2,290,000 (2008/09 £2,081,000) paid in the year in relation to operating leases for
equipment. The unconsolidated audit fee for the University, excluding PCMD, was £44,297 (£42,021 in 2008/2009).
Members of the Board of Governors have not received remuneration or waived payments from the University during the year.
Amounts paid to members of the Board of Governors are included in other expenses. This represents travel and subsistence expenses
incurred in carrying out University business.

9 Analysis of staff costs and other operating expenses by activity
Staff costs

Teaching departments
Academic support services
Administration and central services
Premises costs
Other income-generating activities
Catering and residences operations
Total

Other operating expenses

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

74,370
11,618
10,340
4,873
3,128
1,194

75,051
11,508
11,232
5,198
2,523
1,195

52,835
10,958
11,541
5,877
1,072
597

47,987
9,967
9,621
6,111
230
546

105,523

106,707

82,880

74,462

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

604
1,312
4,150

1,365
1,304
2,460

6,066

5,129

10 Interest payable
Interest:
On bank loans wholly repayable in more than five years
On Finance lease for the Rolle Building, wholly repayable in more than 5 years
Net interest charge on pension scheme assets and liabilities (note 39)
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11 Taxation
Analysis of charge in year

2009/10
£000

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

2008/09
£000

UK corporation tax
Current tax on income for the year

5

(3)

Adjustments in respect of prior year

-

-

Total current tax

5

(3)

Deferred tax
Origination/reversal of timing differences

-

152

Changes in tax rates or laws

-

-

Adjustment in respect of previous years

-

-

Total deferred tax

152

Tax charge for the year

5

149

The deferred tax asset (note 20) has arisen primarily due to timing differences in subsidiary companies.
Analysis of movement in deferred tax asset

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

Opening balance

-

152

Adjustment in respect of prior year

-

-

Adjustment in respect of subsidiary brought forward asset

-

-

Income and expenditure account

-

(152)

Closing balance

-

-

12 Surplus on continuing operations for the year
The surplus on continuing operations is made up as follows:

University’s surplus for the year
Surpluses generated by subsidiary undertakings and payable to the University under the
Gift Aid Regulations
Surpluses generated by subsidiary undertakings but retained within subsidiaries
Losses incurred by subsidiary undertakings
Surplus/(deficit) on continuing operations for the year
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2009/10

2008/09

£000

£000

7,564

367

63

-

157

236

-

(647)

7,784

(44)

13 Tangible assets (consolidated)
Land and buildings
Assets in
course of
construction
Freehold
£000
£000

Long
leasehold
£000

Equipment
£000

Total
£000

Cost
At 1 August 2009

6,022

213,763

21,164

20,831

261,780

11,024
(10,093)
-

9,609
(15,209)

6,886
-

2,810
484
(733)

20,720
(15,209)
(733)

6,953

208,163

28,050

23,392

266,558

Accumulated/Depreciation
At 1 August 2009
Charge for year

-

(40,478)
(5,370)

(1,063)
(412)

(9,489)
(2,298)

(51,030)
(8,080)

Transfers to Assets for resale

-

6,086

-

-

6,086

Eliminated in respect of disposals

-

-

-

708

708

At 31 July 2010

-

(39,762)

(1,475)

(11,079)

(52,316)

At 31 July 2010

6,953

168,401

26,575

12,313

214,242

At 31 July 2009

6,022

173,285

20,101

11,342

210,750

Additions
Transfers
Transfer to Assets for resale
Disposals
At 31 July 2010

Net book value

Funded by:
Inherited
Financed by capital grant
Other

-

20,318

-

-

20,318

6,953

61,458
86,625

26,575

4,375
7,938

65,833
128,091

Net book value at 31 July 2010

6,953

168,401

26,575

12,313

214,242

A valuation was performed in 1990 and in line with the transitional arrangements of FRS 15, the University has chosen not to update
these valuations. Included in the cost of tangible fixed assets is £610,000 (2009: £610,000) in respect of capitalised finance costs. This
represents an average interest rate of 5.32% (2009: 5.32%).
At 31 July 2010 assets with a net book value of £9,123,000 were transferred to Assets Held for Resale. These assets are vacant
properties in Exeter and Exmouth which are expected to be sold during the year to July 2011.

The depreciation charge has been funded by:
Revaluation reserve release
Deferred capital grant
General income
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2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

656
2,578
4,846

986
3,145
3,872

8,080

8,003

13

Tangible assets (University)
Land and buildings
Building
Projects
£000

Freehold
£000

Long
Leasehold
£000

6,022

213,747

Equipment

Total

£000

£000

21,164

20,581

261,514

6,886

2,631
483
(732)

20,539
(15,209)
(732)

Cost
At 1 August 2009
Additions
Transfers
Transfers to Current Assets
Disposals
At 31 July 2010

11,022
(10,092)

9,609
(15,209)

6,952

208,147

28,050

22,963

266,112

-

(40,471)
(5,368)
6,086
(39,753)

(1,063)
(412)
(1,475)

(9,319)
(2,283)
708
(10,894)

(50,853)
(8,063)
6,086
708
(52,122)

At 31 July 2010

6,952

168,394

26,575

12,069

213,990

At 31 July 2009

6,022

173,276

20,101

11,262

210,661

Funded by:
Inherited
Financed by capital grant
Other

6,952

20,317
61,458
86,619

26,575

4,375
7,694

20,317
65,833
127,840

Net book value at 31 July 2010

6,952

168,394

26,575

12,069

213,990

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2009
Charge for year
Transfers to current assets
Eliminated in respect of disposals
At 31 July 2010
Net book value

Included in the cost of tangible fixed assets is £18,754,734 (2009: £18,754,734) in respect of the Rolle building, which is funded
through a finance lease. Depreciation of £367,660 was charged on this asset during the year to July 2010 (2009: £375,095).

14 Intangible assets
Negative goodwill arising on acquisition of Joint Venture in Tamar Science Park Limited
£000
Cost
At 1 August 2009

-

Fair Value on acquisition

(3,269)

At 31 July 2010

(3,269)

Net book value
At 31 July 2010

(3,269)

At 31 July 2009

-
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15 Fixed asset Investments
Consolidated
2010
£000
75
-

University
2010
£000
100
69
1,476

Consolidated
2009
£000
76
-

University
2009
£000
1
69
-

75

1,645

76

70

Consolidated
2010
£000

University
2010
£000

Consolidated
2009
£000

University
2009
£000

CVCP Properties Plc
Adsfab Limited
Dairy Crest Group Plc
Genus Plc
Moustraining Limited
ICO3 Limited

37
1
22
9
2
4

37
1
22
9
-

37
1
22
9
2
5

37
1
22
9
-

Total

75

69

76

69

Shares in subsidiary companies
Other fixed asset investments
Investment in joint venture
Total
Other fixed asset investments consists of:

The University owns 100% of the issued share capital of 100,000 £1 ordinary shares of University of Plymouth Enterprise Limited
(UPEL), a company limited by shares and registered in England and Wales. UPEL undertakes research and consultancy projects,
conferencing and events and car parking. The results of UPEL have been consolidated into the University of Plymouth’s group financial
statements.
The University owns 100% of the issued share capital of 1 £1 ordinary share of PMS (Facilities) Plymouth Limited (PFPL), a company
limited by shares and registered in England and Wales. PFPL provides facilities management at the John Bull building, Tamar Science
Park. The results of PFPL have been consolidated into the University of Plymouth’s group financial statements.
The University and Plymouth City Council have joined together to form a joint venture to secure the development of a science park in
Plymouth. Tamar Science Park Limited (TSPL) is a company limited by guarantee and incorporated in England and Wales. The
University's liability is limited to £1 and has two directors, with voting rights, on the board. TSPL has published its accounts for the
year to 31 March 2010. The results of TSPL have been consolidated into the University of Plymouth’s group financial statements on
the basis that it is a joint venture arrangement.
The University is the lead sponsor for the Marine Academy Plymouth, which replaced Tamarside Community College from 4
September 2010. The University is a member of the Marine Academy Plymouth Limited (MAP), a company limited by shares,
incorporated in England and Wales. The University’s liability is £10 and will have seven directors on the board. MAP has not published
any accounts as newly incorporated on 18 March 2010. The results of MAP have not been consolidated into the University of
st
Plymouth’s group financial statements, as operations effectively started from September 2010. It is anticipated that from 1 August
2010 the results of MAP will be consolidated into the University of Plymouth’s group financial statements, as the University is
considered to have significant influence over MAP.
The University of Plymouth Enterprise Limited owns 100% of the issued share capital of 1 £1 ordinary share of the Centre of
Leadership and Organisational Excellence Limited (CLOE), a company limited by shares and registered in England and Wales. CLOE was
set up to develop intellectual property owned by an external party, to provide practical and sustainable business solutions and to
improve the commercial performance and capability of internal partners and external customers. The results of CLOE have not been
consolidated into the University of Plymouth’s group financial statements, since its results are not material to the University.
The University of Plymouth Enterprise Limited owns 27% of the issued share capital of 850 £1 ordinary shares of Moustraining Limited
(MTL), a company limited by shares and registered in England and Wales. MTL was set up to offer distance learning IT courses. MTL
has published its accounts for the year to 31 March 2010. The results of MTL have not been consolidated into the University of
Plymouth’s group financial statements, since its results are not material to the University.
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The University owns 1 of the 7 £1 issued ordinary shares of Marinetech South Limited (MSL), a company limited by shares and
incorporated in England and Wales. MSL was formed to carry out research and development for natural sciences and engineering. The
University can nominate one of the directors. MSL has published its accounts for the year to 31 December 2008. The results have not
been consolidated into the University of Plymouth’s group financial statements as the University is not considered to have significant
influence over MSL.
The University is a member of South West England Regional Network Limited (SWERN), a company limited by guarantee and
incorporated in England and Wales. The University's liability is limited to £1 and nominates one of the six directors. SWERN is
contracted to manage and administer the South West Regional Network. SWERN has published its accounts for the year to 30
September 2009. The results of SWERN have not been consolidated into the University of Plymouth’s group financial statements, as
the University is not considered to have significant influence over SWERN.
The University is a member of James Square (Plymouth) Limited (JSPL), a company limited by guarantee and incorporated in England
and Wales. The University's liability is limited to £1 and nominates two of the four directors. JSPL provides and manages facilities for
higher education, specifically the Rolle building at the University of Plymouth. The administration of JSPL has been delegated to UPP
Residential Services Limited. JSPL has published its accounts for the year to 31 August 2009. The results of JSPL have not been
consolidated into the University of Plymouth’s group financial statements, since its results are not material to the University.
The University is a member of Mountbatten Sailing and Water Sports Centre Limited (MSWSC), a company limited by guarantee
and incorporated in England and Wales. The University’s liability is limited to £1 and nominates two of the directors. MSWSC was
formed to increase participation in sporting activity through the development of a centre of excellence for the encouragement of and
enjoyment and competition in, sailing, water sports and related activities. The company has published its accounts for the year to 31
October 2009. The results of MSWSC have not been consolidated into the University of Plymouth’s group financial statements, since
its results are not material to the University.

16 Investments in Joint Ventures
The Institution holds a 50% share of Tamar Science Park Limited, a company limited by guarantee. This is a joint venture company
owned equally by the Institution and Plymouth City Council. The arrangement is treated as a joint venture and is accounted for using
the gross equity method, such that 50% of the company’s gross assets and liabilities are incorporated into the consolidated balance
sheet of the Institution and 50% of its net income is reported in the Institution's consolidated income and expenditure account.
Consolidated
2010
Income and expenditure account

£000

Income

323

Expenditure

(282)

Surplus before tax

41

Balance sheet
Fixed assets

7,616

Current assets

1,089
8,705

Creditors: amounts due within one year

(401)

Creditors: amounts due after more than one year
Bank loans

(1,330)

Accruals and deferred income

(2,188)
(3,919)

Share of net assets

4,786
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16 Investments in Joint Ventures (continued)
The investment properties were valued as at 31 January 2010 by Vickery Holman, Chartered Surveyors, at their open market value for
existing use. The valuations were carried out in accordance with SSAP19. The market value of these properties decreased by £0.95m
during the year. The historical cost of these assets at 31 July 2010, net of assistance grants, amounted to £6.97m (2009: £6.93m).
The bank loan is payable until 2030 and is repayable on an interest only basis until 2015, whereupon it will become repayable at
1.25% above the banks base rate.

17 Endowment assets
Consolidated and University
2010
2009
£000
£000
Balance at 1 August
New endowments invested
(Decrease)/increase in cash balances held for endowment funds

147
22
(16)

74
71
2

Balance at 31 July

153

147

18 Stock

Media stocks
Merchandise stocks
Farm stocks
Catering stocks
Maintenance stocks
Work in progress (commercial projects)
Total

Consolidated
2010
£000

University
2010
£000

Consolidated
2009
£000

University
2009
£000

45
43
25
13
75

45
25
13
-

35
82
36
11
162

35
82
36
11
-

201

83

326

164

19 Assets held for resale
Consolidated
& University
2010
£000
At 1 August

8,582

Net book value of assets sold in the year

(8,053)

Transfers from fixed assets

9,123

Balance at 31 July

9,652

The University expects to sell its properties in Exeter and Exmouth during the year to July 2011. The net book value of these assets of
£9,123,000 was transferred from fixed assets to assets held for resale as at 31 July 2010.
The Hoe Centre was transferred to assets held for resale at 31 July 2009. The site is currently being demolished and it will be sold with
planning consent during the year to 31 July 2011.
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20 Debtors
Consolidated
2010
£000

University
2010
£000

Consolidated
2009
£000

University
2009
£000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors
Amounts owed by group undertakings:
Subsidiary undertakings
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

5,336

5,302

5,756

5,333

335
13,197

43
335
12,623

755
8,330

975
749
8,213

Total

18,868

18,303

14,841

15,270

Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

145
1,605

145
1,605

179
7,336

179
7,336

Total

1,750

1,750

7,515

7,515

20,618

20,053

22,356

22,785

Consolidated
2010
£000

University
2010
£000

Consolidated
2009
£000

University
2009
£000

Bank loans (see note 23)
Bank overdrafts
Trade creditors
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Other creditors
Taxation and Social Security
Accruals
Deferred income

1,726
2,765
7,767
229
8,363
31,825

1,726
2,765
7,767
258
8,025
31,381

1,511
962
2,044
4,779
3,009
5,916
19,963

1,511
971
2,014
3
4,777
2,980
5,844
19,661

Total

52,675

51,922

38,184

37,761

Amounts falling due after more than one year:

Total debtors

21 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

22 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Consolidated
2010
£000

University
2010
£000

Consolidated
2009
£000

University
2009
£000

Unsecured Loans
Deferred income and other creditors
Finance Lease - Rolle Building
Finance Lease – John Bull Building

53,951
13,802
18,981
298

53,951
13,570
18,981
298

55,879
12,598
18,863
-

55,879
12,505
18,863
-

Total

87,032

86,800

87,340

87,247
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22 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

Loan 1 is payable until 2037, the current rate of interest is 1.68%. This loan is unsecured. The outstanding capital amount at 31 July
2010 was £23,796,898 (2009 £24,605,898).
Loan 2 is payable until 2016, the current rate of interest is 0.77%. This loan is unsecured. The outstanding capital amount at 31 July
2010 was £4,879,677 (2009 £5,784,033).
Loan 3 is payable until 2036, the current rate of interest is 0.70%. This loan is unsecured. The outstanding capital amount at 31 July
2010 was £27,000,000 (2009 £27,000,000).
The Finance Leases relating to the Rolle Building and the John Bull Building are repayable in more than 5 years.

23 Borrowings
Bank loans and other loans

Consolidated & University
2010

2009

£000

£000

in one year or less

1,726

1,511

between one and two years

2,547

1,724

between two and five years

8,524

8,214

42,880

45,941

55,677

57,390

Bank loans and other loans are repayable as follows:

in five years or more
Total

24 Provisions for liabilities – Consolidated and University
Enhanced
Pension

Other
Provisions

Total
2009/10

Total
2008/09

£000

£000

£000

£000

5,457

-

5,457

5,543

(1,604)

-

(1,604)

(1,039)

Charged in income and expenditure account

1,026

1,239

2,265

953

At 31 July

4,879

1,239

6,118

5,457

At 1 August
Expenditure in the year

The enhanced pension provision is in respect of the future costs of lump sum payments and enhanced pensions payable to staff who
have agreed terms for early retirement.
st

£1,000,000 of other provisions is relating to a HEFCE claw back provision for the year ended 31 July 2010.
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25 Deferred capital grants
Consolidated

Buildings
2009/10
£000

Equipment
2009/10
£000

Total
2009/10
£000

Total
2008/09
£000

59,481
3,670
(1,832)
-

3,851
1,409
(680)
(66)

63,332
5,079
(2,512)
(66)

49,843
17,056
(422)
(3,081)
(64)

61,319

4,514

65,833

63,332

University
At 1 August
Cash receivable
Transfer of capital grants
Release to income and expenditure account

59,481
3,670
(1,693)

3,801
1,265
(879)

63,282
4,935
(2,572)

49,787
17,056
(422)
(3,139)

At 31 July

61,458

4,187

65,645

63,282

At 1 August 2009
Cash receivable
Transfer of capital grants
Release to funding body grant income
Release to research grant and contract income
At 31 July

26 Endowments – Consolidated and University
Restricted
permanent
£000
Balance at 1 August
Capital
Accumulated income

Restricted
expendable
£000

2010
Total
£000

2009
Total
£000

65
1

78
3

143
4

72
2

66

81

147

74

New endowments
Investment income
Expenditure

20
1
(1)
20

2
1
(17)
(14)

22
2
(18)
6

71
3
(1)
2

At 31 July

86

67

153

147

Represented by:
Capital
Accumulated (loss)/income

85
1

80
(13)

165
(12)

143
4

86

67

153

147

27 Revaluation reserve
Consolidated and University
2009/10
2008/09
£000
£000
At 1 August
- Disposal, demolition and impairment of assets
- Depreciation on revalued assets

33,980
(6,508)
(656)

36,573
(1,134)
(1,459)

At 31 July

26,816

33,980
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28 Movement on general reserves
Income and expenditure account reserve

Consolidated
2009/10
£000

University
2009/10
£000

At 1 August
Surplus before transfer from revaluation reserve
Transfer from revaluation reserve in respect of:
- Disposals, demolitions and impairments
- Depreciation
Add back pension deficit

39,543
7,778

39,655
7,598

6,508
656
3,120

6,508
656
3,120

Balance at 31 July

57,605

57,537
Consolidated &
University
2009/10
£000

Pension reserve

At 1 August
Actuarial gain on pension scheme assets and liabilities
Deficit retained within reserves

(66,240)
4,490
(3,120)

Balance at 31 July

(64,870)

29 Reconciliation of consolidated operating surplus/(deficit) to net cash inflow from operating activities
2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

Surplus/(deficit) on continuing operations after depreciation of assets
and after taxation
Taxation
FRS17 pension adjustment
Depreciation
Deferred capital grants released to income
Impairment of assets
Surplus on disposal of tangible fixed assets

7,778
5
(1,021)
8,080
(2,578)
(1,664)

(46)
152
(310)
8,003
(3,145)
1,465
(868)

Decrease in stocks
Increase in debtors
Increase/(decrease) in creditors
Increase/(decrease) in provisions

125
1,739
17,698
661

4
2,807
(2,541)
(86)

6,066
(288)

5,129
(672)

36,601

9,892

Interest payable
Interest receivable
Net cash inflow from operating activities

30 Returns on investments and servicing of finance
2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

Income from endowments
Other interest received
Interest paid
Interest element of finance lease rental payments

6
288
(604)
(1,312)

73
672
(1,365)
(1,304)

Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance

(1,622)

(1,924)
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31 Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of investment
Sale of tangible fixed assets
Deferred capital grants received
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from capital expenditure and financial investment

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

(20,720)
(1,475)
9,743
5,079

(10,639)
3
1,162
11,012

(7,373)

1,538

32 Financing

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

Increase in finance lease liability
Repayment of finance lease
Repayment of loans

297
(1,194)
(1,713)

109
(1,352)

Net cash outflow from financing

(2,610)

(1,243)

33 Analysis of changes in net debt
At 1 August
2009
£000

Cash flows
£000

Other noncash changes
£000

At 31 July
2010
£000

147
(962)

8,184
6
962

-

8,184
153
-

(815)

9,152

-

8,337

Debt due within one year
Debt due after one year
Finance leases due after one year
Management of liquid resources

(1,511)
(55,879)
(18,863)
25,746

(215)
1,928
897
15,844

(1,312)
-

(1,726)
(53,951)
(19,278)
41,590

Net debt

(51,322)

27,606

(1,312)

(25,028)

Cash in hand, and at bank
Endowment asset investments (note 17)
Overdrafts (note 21)

The non-cash change figure of £1,312,000 relates to interest accrued on finance leases during the year.
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34 Commitments
Capital commitments at the end of the financial year for which no provision has been made are as follows:
Consolidated and University
2010
2009
£000
£000
Commitments contracted at 31 July
Authorised but not contracted at 31 July

6,011
2,489

1,103
14,297

Total

8,500

15,400

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Consolidated and University
2010
2009
£000
£000
£000
Land and
Land and
Other
Buildings
Buildings

£000
Other

Operating leases which expire:
Within one year

-

471

40

3

66

1,581

23

2,287

Over five years

498

-

452

-

Total

564

2,052

515

2,290

In the second to fifth years inclusive

35 Contingent Liabilities
The University has provided a guarantee to HSBC plc for an overdraft facility for the University of Plymouth Enterprise Limited of
£75,000.
A deposit of £1.02m was placed, by the University of Exeter on behalf of PCMD with the Icelandic Bank Landsbanki Islands hf on 18
April 2008. The deposit was placed in line with the University of Exeter’s investment policy and per the terms of the PCMD
Memorandum of Agreement. It was due to mature on 20 October 2008.
The Universities of Exeter and Plymouth have taken the prudent approach that 80% of the sum will be recovered and have written off
st
20% of the deposit, totalling £200,000, in the year ended 31 July 2009. The Universities of Exeter and Plymouth will each bear 50% of
any future loss that may arise. The most current professional advice indicates that between 75% and 93% of such deposits will be
recoverable for priority creditors. This is dependent on depositors retaining their priority status and has been challenged. Court
proceedings will commence and it is likely that it will take up to a year for the matter to be resolved in the courts. The litigation costs
will be spread over all depositors and the University’s share is unlikely to be material.
The University received South West Strategic Health Authority attrition funding of £1,725,177 during the year. These funds are
classified by the South West Strategic Health Authority as spent reinvestment funds. It is believed that these reinvestment funds could
potentially be clawed back by the South West Strategic Health Authority, however at this stage there is no indication that this will
happen.
Cumulative capital grants received in relation to the University’s own buildings and those owned by Tamar Science Park Limited may
become repayable, in whole or in part, in the event of failure to comply with the terms attaching to them. Cumulative revenue grants
received in relation to the University’s own projects and those undertaken by Tamar Science Park Limited may become repayable, in
whole or in part, in the event of failure to comply with the terms attaching to them.
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36 Related party transactions
Due to the nature of the University’s operations and the composition of the Board of Governors (being primarily drawn from local
public and private sector organisations) it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of the
Board of Governors may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a member of the board of governors may
have an interest are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with the University’s financial regulations and normal procurement
procedures.
The University has taken advantage of the exemptions under FRS 8 for 90% owned subsidiaries not to disclose intra-group
transactions.
These financial statements reflect the following transactions with related parties, which were undertaken on an arm’s length basis
and under normal commercial terms:
2009/10
2008/09
Name

Tamar Science Park Limited

Nature of interest

Detail

Rental payments,
consumables, consultancy

Moustraining Limited

Joint Venture and Chair
of Board of Governors
acts as TSP Chair
Associate

Moustraining Limited

Associate

Dividend Receipt in UPEL

South West England
Regional Network Limited

Senior Managers act as
Non-executive Directors

IT networking

Theatre Royal Plymouth/
Plymouth Pavilions Ltd

MD acts as Governor

Ticket purchase and arena
hire

South West Film &
Television Archive

Senior Manager acts as a
Board Member

Use of film footage

South West Media Group

Governor acts as
Managing Director

Media Advertisement

South Western Ambulance
Trust

Senior Manager acts as
Non-executive Director

Ambulance Services

National Institute for Health
& Clinical Excellence

Governor acts as Vice
Chairman

Health Promotion

Devon Partnership NHS
Trust

Governor acts as
Chairman

HealthCare

Barbican Theatre, Plymouth

Governor is on the Board
of Trustees

External facility hire and
consultancy

HEFCE teaching grant
payments

Income/
(Expense)

Amount
due to/
(from)

Income/
(Expense)

Amount
due to/
(from)

£000

£000

£000

£000

(81)

6

(25)

-

(458)

-

(463)

-

-

-

28

-

(14)

-

179

(1)

(112)

1

(15)

-

(25)

-

40

-

-

-

(24)

-

(14)

-

(27)

-

-

-

36

-

(203)

-

(193

-

(12)

1

-

-

Further to the disclosures made above, One Senior Manager is a Trustee of James Square (Plymouth) Limited. The University has
leased the Rolle Building from this company from August 2008. (See note 22)
One of the Board of Governors is Chair of Governors at Truro College, a partner college of the University of Plymouth. HEFCE
recurrent teaching grant and other specific funding totalling £4.26m (2008/09: £3.93m) was paid to Truro College during the year.
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Two Board members are independent members of the Standards Committee for Plymouth City Council. The University pays rent,
business rates, refuse collection charges and other miscellaneous charges to Plymouth City Council. The transactions that took place
during the year are not considered material to either party.
Three Board members are on the Board of The South West Regional Development Agency, who are the main sponsor of the PRIMaRE
Project. Income recognised in the year relating to this project was £0.86m (2008/9: £0.90m).

37 Access funds
2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

Funding council grants

1,007

1,214

Disbursed to students

(1,007)

(1,214)

-

-

Balance unspent as at 31 July

Funding council grants are available solely for students; the University acts only as paying agent.
disbursements are therefore excluded from the income and expenditure account.

The grants and related

38 Pensions
Devon County Council Pension Fund
The University participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), a defined benefit statutory scheme based on final
pensionable salary and administered in accordance with LGPS regulations 2007/08 as amended. It is contracted out of the state
second pension. The most recent valuation was carried out as part of the triennial actuarial valuations as at 31 March 2007, and has
been updated by independent actuaries to the Devon County Council Pension Fund (the Fund) to take account of the requirements of
FRS 17 in order to assess the liabilities of the Fund as at 31 July 2010. Liabilities are valued on an actuarial basis using the projected
unit method which assesses the future liabilities discounted to their present value.
The total contribution made for the year ended 31 July 2010 was £9,520,000 (2009: £8,619,900), of which employer’s contributions
totalled £7,120,000 (2009: £6,200,000) and employees’ contributions totalled £2,400,000 (2009: £2,419,900). Average employer
contribution rates were 16% to 31 March 2009 and 18% from 1 April 2009. Expected employer’s contributions for the year beginning
1 August 2010 are £6,293,000.
Changes to the LGPS
During 2010 the government announced that plans to increase future pensions in line with the Consumer Price Index (CPI) rather than
the Retail Price Index (RPI). This is not considered to be a rule change as the increases are published annually but rather a policy
change. The change will affect all pension benefits earned to date as well as future benefits and this has been accounted for as a past
service gain in the Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL). The capitalised gain from the change in the pension increase
policy from RPI to CPI is £8,382,000.
A number of changes to the LGPS came into effect on 1 April 2008. The changes mainly relate to benefits accruing and scheme
member contributions after this date.
However, the changes introduced to the scheme in 2008 also affect active members’ benefits earned before 1 April 2008 as follows:
 An increase in the period of pension guarantee following retirements from five to ten years.
 The introduction of contingent dependents’ benefits for co-habitees.
 An increase in the lump sum on death in deferment benefits following the member leaving service from three times to five
times the deferred pension
 A change to service enhancements for ill-health and death in service pensions.
The past service costs of these benefit improvements has been calculated as 1.7% of active members’ liabilities.
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The major assumptions used in this valuation were:
31 July 2010
%pa

31 July 2009
%pa

31 July 2008
%pa

Discount rate
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions

5.4
4.7
2.7

6.4
5.3
3.8

6.5
5.3
3.8

Rate of increase in deferred pensions
Rate of RPI increase
Rate of CPI increase

2.7
3.2
2.7

3.8
3.8
n/a

3.8
3.8
n/a

Long term expected rates of return on:
Equities
Gilts
Property
Cash
Other bonds
Absolute return funds
Expected return on assets

7.8
4.3
6.8
3.0
5.4
5.0
6.7

8.0
4.5
7.0
0.9
5.9
6.5

7.8
4.8
6.8
5.9
6.5
7.0

The current mortality assumptions have been projected to allow for observed and possible future improvements in longevity. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:
31 July 2010

31 July 2009

Males

23.1

23.1

Females

25.0

25.0

Males

25.4

25.4

Females

27.3

27.3

Retiring today

Retiring in 20 years

Scheme assets
The fair value of the scheme’s assets, which are not intended to be realised in the short term and may be subject to significant change
before they are realised, and the present value of the scheme’s liabilities, which are derived from cash flow projections over long
periods and thus inherently uncertain, were: -

Equities
Property
Bonds
Cash
Absolute Return Funds

31 July 2010
£m
%
74.25 68
6.55
6
19.65 18
7.64
7
1.09
1

31 July 2009
£m
%
56.67
63
5.50
6
15.77
17
12.15
14
n/a

31 July 2008
£m
%
56.46
63
7.56
8
15.74
18
10.32
11
- n/a

Total

109.19 100

90.09

90.08

100

100

The return on the fund (on a bid value to bid value basis) for the year to 31 July 2010 is estimated to be 16%, however the annual
return on fund assets over the year maybe different. Based on the above the Employer’s share of the assets is approximately 5%.
In accordance with Paragraph 77(o) of FRS17 (as revised), the assets for the current period and previous period are measured at
current bid price. Asset values for periods ending 2007 and 2008 are stated at mid market value.
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Fair value of scheme assets
Present value of funded liability

31 July
2010
£m

31 July
2009
£m

31 July
2008
£m

31 July
2007
£m

31 July
2006
£m

109.19

90.09

90.08

123.44

105.12

(174.06)

(156.33)

(133.53)

(143.77)

(136.03)

-

-

-

-

-

(64.87)

(66.24)

(43.45)

(20.33)

(30.91)

Present value of unfunded liability
Net liability of the fund

Note: Unfunded liabilities are not allowed for unless specifically instructed. Where they are included they are also allowed for in the
analyses below.
The University of Plymouth employs a building block approach in determining the rate of return on Fund assets. Historical markets are
studied and assets with higher volatility are assumed to generate higher returns consistent with widely accepted capital market
principles. The assumed rate of return on each asset class is set out within this note. The overall expected rate of return on assets is
then derived by aggregating the expected rate of return for each asset class over the actual asset allocation for the Fund as at 31 July
2010.
Actual return on assets

Expected return on scheme assets

2010
£m
5.96

2009
£m
6.43

Actuarial gain/(loss) on assets

8.47

(13.35)

14.44

(6.92)

Actual return on scheme assets
Analysis of the amount charged to income and expenditure account

2010
£m

2009
£m

Current service cost
Past service cost
Loss on curtailments and settlements

5.75
0.33

5.46
0.43
-

Total operating charge

6.08

5.89

2010
£m

2009
£m

(5.96)
10.11

(6.43)
8.89

4.15

2.46

2010
£m

2009
£m

Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in STRGL in the year
Cumulative actuarial loss recognised in STRGL at 1 August

4.49
(53.36)

(20.64)
(32.72)

Cumulative actuarial loss recognised in STRGL at 31 July

(48.87)

(53.36)

Analysis of pension finance costs

Expected return on scheme assets
Interest on pension liability
Total pension finance costs

Amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses (STRGL)

Asset and liability reconciliation
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2010
£m

2009
£m

Liabilities at start of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Employee contributions
Actuarial loss
Benefits paid
Past service cost
Loss on curtailments and settlements

156.33
5.75
10.11
2.40
12.38
(4.86)
(8.38)
0.33

133.53
5.46
8.89
2.42
7.29
(1.69)
0.43
-

Defined benefit liabilities at end of year

174.06

156.33

Assets at start of year
Expected return on assets
Actuarial gain/(loss)
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Estimated benefits paid (net of transfers in)

90.09
5.96
8.47
7.12
2.40
(4.86)

90.08
6.43
(13.35)
6.20
2.42
(1.69)

Fair value of scheme assets at end of year

109.19

90.09

Reconciliation of Liabilities

Reconciliation of Assets

History of experience gains and losses

Experience gains /(losses) on Scheme liabilities
Experience gains /(losses) on Scheme assets

2010
£m

2009
£m

2008
£m

2007
£m

2006
£m

12.38

(0.24)

23.74

(0.20)

(0.19)

8.47

(13.35)

(48.71)

6.41

5.53

Universities’ Superannuation Scheme
The institution participates in the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS), a defined benefit scheme which is contracted out of the
State Second Pension (S2P). The assets of the scheme are held in a separate fund administered by the trustee, Universities
Superannuation Scheme Limited.
The appointment of directors to the board of the trustee is determined by the company’s Articles of Association. Four of the directors
are appointed by Universities UK; three are appointed by the University and College Union, of whom at least one must be a USS
pensioner member; one is appointed by the Higher Education Funding Councils; and a minimum of two and a maximum of four are
co-opted directors appointed by board. Under the scheme trust deed and rules, the employer contribution rate is determined by the
trustee, acting on actuarial advice.
Because of the mutual nature of the scheme, the scheme’s assets are not hypothecated to individual institutions and a scheme-wide
contribution rate is set. The institution is therefore exposed to actuarial risks associated with other institutions’ employees and is
unable to indentify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore,
as required by FRS 17 “Retirement benefits”, accounts for the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. As a result, the
amount charged to the income and expenditure account represents the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the
accounting period.
The latest triennial actuarial valuation of the scheme was at 31 March 2008. This was the first valuation for USS under the new
scheme-specific funding regime introduced by the Pensions Act 2004, which requires schemes to adopt a statutory funding objective,
which is to have sufficient and appropriate assets to cover their technical provisions. The actuary also carries out a review of the
funding level each year between triennial valuations and details of his estimate of the funding level at 31 March 2010 are also
included in this note.
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The triennial valuation was carried out using the projected unit method. The assumptions which have the most significant effect on
the result of the valuation are those relating to the rate of return on investments (i.e. the valuation rate of interest), the rates of
increase in salary and pensions and the assumed rates of mortality. The financial assumptions were derived from market yields
prevailing at the valuation date. An “inflation risk premium” adjustment was also included by deducting 0.3% from the market-implied
inflation on account of the historically high level of inflation implied by government bonds (particularly when compared to the Bank of
England’s target of 2% for CPI which corresponds broadly to 2.75% for RPI per annum).
To calculate the technical provisions, it was assumed that the valuation rate of interest would be 6.4% per annum (which includes an
additional assumed investment return over gilts of 2% per annum), salary increases would be 4.3% per annum (plus an additional
allowance for increases in salaries due to age and promotion reflecting historic Scheme experience, with a further cautionary reserve
on top for past service liabilities) and pensions would increase by 3.3% per annum.
Standard mortality tables were used as follows:
Male members’ mortality

PA92 MC YoB tables – rated down 1 year

Female members’ mortality

PA92 MC YoB tables - No age rating

Use of these mortality tables reasonably reflects the actual USS experience but also provides an element of conservatism to allow for
further improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

Males (females) currently aged 65

22.8 (24.8) years

Males (females) currently aged 45

24.0 (25.9) years

At the valuation date, the value of the assets of the scheme was £28,842.6 million and the value of the scheme’s technical provisions
was £28,135.3 million indicating a surplus of £707.3 million. The assets therefore were sufficient to cover 103% of the benefits which
had accrued to members after allowing for expected future increases in earnings.
The actuary also valued the scheme on a number of other bases as at the valuation date. On the scheme’s historic gilts basis, using a
valuation rate of interest in respect of past service liabilities of 4.4% per annum (the expected return on gilts) the funding level was
approximately 71%. Under the Pension Protection Fund regulations introduced by the Pensions Act 2004 the Scheme was 107%
funded; on a buy-out basis (i.e. assuming the Scheme had discontinued on the valuation date) the assets would have been
approximately 79% of the amount necessary to secure all the USS benefits with an insurance company; and using the FRS17 formula
as if USS was a single employer scheme, using a AA bond discount rate of 6.5% per annum based on spot yields, the actuary estimated
that the funding level at 31 March 2008 was 104%.
The technical provisions relate essentially to the past service liabilities and funding levels, but it is also necessary to assess the ongoing
cost of newly accruing benefits. The cost of future accrual was calculated using the same assumptions as those used to calculate the
technical provisions except that the valuation rate of interest assumed asset outperformance over gilts of 1.7% per annum (compared
to 2% per annum for the technical provisions) giving a discount rate of 6.1% per annum; also the allowance for promotional salary
increases was not as high. There is currently uncertainty in the sector regarding pay growth. Analysis has shown very variable levels of
growth over and above general pay increases in recent years, and the salary growth assumption built into the cost of future accrual is
based on more stable, historic, salary experience. However, when calculating the past service liabilities of the scheme, a cautionary
reserve has been included, in addition, on account of the variability mentioned above.
The scheme-wide contribution rate required for future service benefits alone at the date of the valuation was 16% of pensionable
salaries and the trustee company, on the advice of the actuary, increased the institution contribution rate to 16% of pensionable
salaries from 1 October 2009.
Since 31 March 2008 global investment markets have continued to fluctuate and at 31 March 2010 the actuary has estimated that the
funding level under the new scheme specific funding regime had fallen from 103% to 91% (a deficit of £3.065 million). This estimate is
based on the funding level at 31 March 2008, adjusted to reflect the fund’s actual investment performance over the two years and
changes in market conditions (market conditions affect both the valuation rate of interest and also the inflation assumption which in
turn impacts on the salary and pension increase assumptions).
On the FRS 17 basis, using an AA bond discount rate of 5.6% per annum based on spot yields, the actuary estimated that the funding
level at 31 March 2009 was 80%. An estimate of the funding level measured on a buy-out basis at that date was approximately 57%.
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Surpluses or deficits which arise at future valuations may impact on the institution’s future contribution commitment. A deficit may
require additional funding in the form of higher contribution requirements, where a surplus could, perhaps, be used to similarly
reduce contribution requirements. The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities on a
technical provisions basis as at the date of the last triennial valuation are set out below:

Assumptions

Change in assumption

Impact on scheme liabilities

Valuation rate of interest

Increase/decrease by 0.5%

Decrease/Increase by £2.2 billion

Rate of pension increases

Increased/decrease by 0.5%

Increase/decrease by £1.5 billion

Rate of salary growth

Increase/decrease by 0.5%

Increase/decrease by £0.7 billion

Rate of mortality

More prudent assumption
(move to long cohort future
improvements
from
the
medium cohort adopted at the
valuation)

Increase by £1.6 billion

USS is a “last man standing” scheme so that in the event of the insolvency of any of the participating employers in USS, the amount of
any pension funding shortfall (which cannot otherwise be recovered) in respect of that employer will be spread across the remaining
participant employers and reflected in the next actuarial valuation of the scheme.
The trustee believes that over the long-term equity investment and investment in selected alternative asset classes will provide
superior returns to other investment classes. The management structure and targets set are designed to give the fund a major
exposure to equities through portfolios that are diversified both geographically and by sector. The trustee recognises that it would be
possible to select investments producing income flows broadly similar to the estimated liability cash flows. However, in order to meet
the long-term funding objective within a level of contributions that it considers the employers would be willing to make, the trustee
needs to take on a degree of investment risk relative to the liabilities. This taking of investment risk seeks to target a greater return
than the matching assets would provide whilst maintaining a prudent approach to meeting the fund’s liabilities. Before deciding to
take investment risk relative to the liabilities, the trustee receives advice from its internal investment team, its investment consultant
and the scheme actuary, and considers the views of the employers. The strong positive cash flow of the scheme means that it is not
necessary to realise investments to meet liabilities. The trustee believes that this, together with the ongoing flow of new entrants into
the scheme and the strength of covenant of the employers enables it to take a long-term view of its investments. Short-term volatility
of returns can be tolerated and need not feed through directly to the contribution rate, although the trustee is mindful of the
desirability of keeping the funding level on the scheme’s technical provisions close to or above 100% thereby minimising the risk of
the introduction of deficit contributions. The actuary has confirmed that the scheme’s cash flow is likely to remain positive for the
next ten years or more.
The next formal triennial actuarial valuation is due as at 31 March 2011. The contribution rate will be reviewed as part of each
valuation and may be reviewed more frequently.
At 31 March 2010, USS had over 135,000 active members and the institution had 64 active members participating in the scheme.
The total pension cost for the institution was £451,592 (2009: £419,069). The contribution rate payable by the institution was 16% of
pensionable salaries.
Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS)
The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) is an unfunded defined benefit pension scheme. Contributions are paid by the University at the
rate specified, to the exchequer under arrangements governed by the Superannuation Act 1972. Not less than every four years the
Government Actuary (GA), using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS. The aim of the review is to
specify the level of future contributions.
The contribution rate paid into the TPS is assessed in two parts. First, a standard contribution rate (SCR) is determined. This is the
contribution, expressed as a percentage of the salaries of teachers and lecturers in service or entering service during the period over
which the contribution rate applies, which if it were paid over the entire active service of these teachers and lecturers would broadly
defray the cost of benefits payable in respect of that service. Secondly, a supplementary contribution is payable if, as a result of the
actuarial investigation, it is found that accumulated liabilities of the Account for benefits to past and present teachers, are not fully
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covered by standard contributions to be paid in future and by the notional fund built up from past contributions. The total
contribution rate payable is the sum of the SCR and the supplementary contribution rate.
The last valuation of the TPS related to the period 1 April 2001 - 31 March 2004. The GA's report of October 2006 revealed that the
total liabilities of the Scheme (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) amounted to £166,500
millions. The value of the assets (estimated future contributions together with the proceeds from the notional investments held at
the valuation date) was £163,240 millions. The assumed real rate of return is 3.5% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings.
The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 1.5%. The assumed gross rate of return is 6.5%.
As from 1 January 2007, and as part of the cost-sharing agreement between employers’ and teachers’ representatives, the SCR has
been assessed at 19.75%, and the supplementary contribution rate has been assessed to be 0.75% (to balance assets and liabilities as
required by the regulations within 15 years); a total contribution rate of 20.5%. This translates into an employee contribution rate of
6.4% and employer contribution rate of 14.1% payable. The cost-sharing agreement has also introduced – effective for the first time
for the 2008 valuation – a 14% cap on employer contributions payable.
The assumptions and other data that have the most significant effect on the determination of the contribution levels are as follows:
Latest actuarial valuations

31 March 2004

Actuarial method

Prospective benefits

Investment returns per annum

6.5%

Salary scale increases per annum

5.0%

Market value of assets at date of last valuation

£163,240m

Proportion of members’ accrued benefits covered by the actuarial value of the assets

98%

The pensions charge recorded by the University during the accounting year was equal to the contributions payable of £5,514,804
(2008/09: £5,580,744). The expected employer’s contributions for 2010/11 are £5,800,000.
National Health Service Pension Scheme (NHS)
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these
provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit
scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in
England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the
underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost
to the NHS Body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.
The scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years) and an accounting valuation every
year. An outline of these follows:
Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking into account its
recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates to be paid by employers and scheme members. The last
such valuation, which determined current contribution rates was undertaken as at 31 March 2004 and covered the period from 1
April 1999 to that date. The conclusion from the 2004 valuation was that the scheme had accumulated a notional deficit of £3.3 billion
against the notional assets as at 31 March 2004.
In order to defray the costs of benefits, employers pay contributions at 14% of pensionable pay and most employees had up to April
2008 paid 6%, with manual staff paying 5%.
Following the full actuarial review by the Government Actuary undertaken as at 31 March 2004, and after consideration of changes to
the NHS Pension Scheme taking effect from 1 April 2008, his Valuation report recommended that employer contributions could
continue at the existing rate of 14% of pensionable pay, from 1 April 2008, following the introduction of employee contributions on a
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tiered scale from 5% up to 8.5% of their pensionable pay depending on total earnings. On advice from the scheme actuary, scheme
contributions may be varied from time to time to reflect changes in the scheme’s liabilities.
Accounting valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting period by updating the
results of the full actuarial valuation.
Between the full actuarial valuations at a two-year midpoint, a full and detailed member data-set is provided to the scheme actuary.
At this point the assumptions regarding the composition of the scheme membership are updated to allow the scheme liability to be
valued.
The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2010, is based on detailed membership data as at 31 March 2008 (the latest
midpoint) updated to 31 March 2010 with summary global member and accounting data.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS
Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Resource Account, published annually. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions
website. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
Scheme provisions
In 2008-09 the NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only,
and is not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits
can be obtained:
Annual Pensions
The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of the last
three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of membership.
Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total pensionable
earnings over the relevant pensionable service.
With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, up to
a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension commutation”.
Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes in
retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year.
A lump sum is payable on retirement which is normally three times the annual pension payment.
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement in certain circumstances, is available to members of the Scheme who are permanently
incapable of fulfilling their duties or regular employment effectively through illness or infirmity.
A death gratuity of twice their final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual pension for death after
retirement is payable.
Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s approved
providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
Scheme members have the option to transfer their pension between the NHS Pension Scheme and another scheme when they move
into or out of NHS employment.
Where a scheme member ceases NHS employment with more than two years service they can preserve their accrued NHS pension for
payment when they reach retirement age.
Where a member of the Scheme is made redundant they may be entitled to early receipt of their pension plus enhancement, at the
employer’s cost.
The pensions charge recorded by the University during the accounting year was equal to the contributions payable of £377,610
(2008/09: £342,240). The contribution rate payable by the institution was 14% of pensionable salaries (2008/09: 14%). The expected
employer’s contributions for 2010/11 are £380,000.
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INCOME and EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT of the HE Community Chest for the year ended 31 July 2010
University of
Exeter
2009/10

University of
Plymouth
2009/10

Total

Total

2009/10

2008/09

Note

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

iii

8,482

8,482

16,964

18,668

2,274

2,300

4,574

3,904

3,764

3,764

7,528

7,425

8,623

2,484

11,107

7,400

2,437

2,417

4,854

3,564

105

104

209

628

Total income

25,685

19,551

45,236

41,589

EXPENDITURE
Staff costs

12,254

8,543

20,797

17,618

Other operating expenses

11,301

8,913

20,214

13,973

135

99

234

219

23,690

17,555

41,245

31,810

1,995

1,996

3,991

9,779

0

0

0

(200)

1,995

1,996

3,991

9,579

Note

2010
£’000

2009
£’000

vii

3,717

2,370

Debtors

viii

12,452

4,919

Cash at bank and in hand

ix

25,359

28,439

37,811

33,358

(18,151)

(17,689)

Net current assets

19,660

15,669

Total assets less current liabilities

23,377

18,039

TOTAL NET ASSETS

23,377

18,039

INCOME
Funding Body grants
Tuition fees and education contracts
NHS funding

iv

Research grants and contracts
Other income

v

Endowment and investment income

Depreciation

vii

Total expenditure
Total operating surplus
Exceptional items: continuing operations
Loss on Investment

xii

Surplus on continuing operations
BALANCE SHEET of the HE Community Chest as at 31 July 2010

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Current assets

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

x

Deferred capital grants
Reserves

xi

TOTAL
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3,717

2,370

19,660

15,669

23,377

18,039

Explanatory Notes
i.

Background

The Peninsula College of Medicine and Dentistry (PCMD) is not a legal entity in its own right. It is a joint arrangement
entered into in partnership by the University of Exeter and the University of Plymouth. PCMD, in turn, has partnership
arrangements with three NHS Trusts (The Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust, Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust
and Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust) and further arrangements with healthcare providers throughout the South West
peninsula.
The Joint Strategy Board is a committee of the Council of the University of Exeter and the Board of Governors of the
University of Plymouth and is responsible to the Universities in respect of the overall management of PCMD within the
policies and parameters set by the Universities’ governing bodies. In making recommendations the Joint Strategy Board
has due regard to the statutory and other legal obligations of the Universities and the NHS institutions.
ii.

Audit arrangements

A 50% share of the Income, Expenditure and Balance Sheet items (excluding Research) of the Peninsula College of
Medicine and Dentistry is included within the Income and Expenditure Account and Balance Sheet of each of the
universities. The items comprising the externally funded Research activity of PCMD are included within the statements of
the University employing each project’s Principal Investigator.
These transactions are part of the audited financial statements of each University for the year ended 31 July 2010.
iii.

Funding Body grants

Recurrent grant
Other specific grants
Deferred capital grants released in the year: Equipment

iv.

2010

2009

£’000

£’000

15,928

17,405

953

1,171

83

92

16,964

18,668

2010

2009

£’000

£’000

7,528

7,425

NHS funding

This funding was receivable to cover HE expenditure attributable to the NHS aspects of the Peninsula College of Medicine
and Dentistry.
v.

Other income

Other grant income
Other income
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2010

2009

£’000

£’000

4,630

2,768

224

796

4,854

3,564

vi.

Staff numbers

The average number of persons (including senior post-holders) employed on behalf of PCMD by either the University of
Exeter and the University of Plymouth during the year, expressed as full-time equivalents, was:

2010

2009

Number

Number

Academic staff

100

86

Research staff

108

94

7

6

Support staff

197

191

Total

412

377

Teaching fellows (formerly tutors)

The above staff numbers are split equally between the two Universities and included in their staff number disclosures.
vii.

Fixed assets

Equipment costing less than £25,000 per individual item or group of related items is written off in the year of acquisition. All
other equipment is capitalised. Capitalised equipment is stated at cost and depreciated over its useful life:
Computer Equipment

4 -8 years

Equipment acquired for specific research projects

Project life (generally 3 years)

Other Equipment

5-10 years

Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants it is capitalised and depreciated as above. The related grant is
treated as a deferred capital grant and released to income over the expected life of the equipment. The equipment
capitalised in this statement is solely acquired with funding made available from the HE Community Chest and the equipment
is jointly owned by the two universities

viii.

Debtors
2010

2009

£’000

£’000

Debtors: amounts due falling due within one year

2,341

1,961

Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year (£547 from partner
Prepayments and accrued income

1,347
1,347
8,043

0
0
2,021

721

937

0

0

12,452

4,919

university)
Due from partner universities
Due from NHS partners
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As noted in xii) below, included within debtors is an amount of £800,000 that relates to deposits placed with Landsbanki
Islands hf. The deposits were previously held as short term cash investments in the prior year. The deposits are contractually
due to be repaid after more than one year.

ix.

Cash at bank and in hand

2010

2009

£’000

£’000

University of Exeter

11,654

19,363

University of Plymouth

13,704

8,522

1

554

25,359

28,439

Held by:

University of Plymouth - PCMD

These balances are held under the agreed management arrangements. The University of Plymouth Peninsula College of
Medicine and Dentistry account facilitates payments to suppliers whilst the balances held by the University of Exeter and the
University of Plymouth are held in instant access accounts and short-term deposits.

x.

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2010

2009

£’000

£’000

Trade creditors

263

113

Other creditors

44

88

0

580

HEFCE Capital funding

2,131

1,977

HEFCE Dental start-up funding

1,468

1,767

NHS Capital funding

1,118

2,341

NHS Dental start-up funding

2,451

2,896

NHS SIFT

1,440

0

Accruals and other deferred income

9,236

7,928

18,151

17,690

Due to partner universities
Deferred income:
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xi.

Reserves

Opening balance
Surplus for the year

2010

2009

£’000

£’000

15,669

6,090

3,991

9,579

19,660

15,669

Closing balance
xi.

Exceptional Item – Loss on Investment

Included within debtors is an amount of £800,000 that relates to a deposit placed with Landsbanki Islands hf. This balance is
net of a provision of £200,000 (2009: £200,000) that was written off in the year ended 31 July 2009. The deposit was
previously held as a short term cash investment.
The deposit was placed by the University of Exeter on behalf of PCMD on 18 April 2008, in line with the University of Exeter’s
investment policy and per the terms of the PCMD Memorandum of Agreement that ensured that no more than £3 million
was held in a single bank or £5 million in the case of UK clearing banks. At this date Landsbanki Islands hf had the appropriate
short term credit rating with Fitch (F1) and Moodys (P1). It was due to mature on 20 October 2008.
On 7 October 2008 Landsbanki Islands hf issued a statement that it had gone into receivership and, like all other Icelandic
banks taken into Icelandic Government control, all payments in and out of the bank were stopped. To date, there has been no
movement of funds and this will not happen until the administrators / receivers have completed their work and are in
position to fund payments or declare actual loss.
The most current professional advice indicates that amounts ranging between 75% and 93% of such deposits will be
recoverable. The Universities of Exeter and Plymouth have assumed 80% of the sum will be recovered in line with CIPFA
guidance.
The Universities of Exeter and Plymouth would each bear 50% of any future loss that may arise.
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